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February 24, 2021 
 
To the Honorable Mayor Joseph Corradino 
Members of the Village Council and 
Citizens of the Village of Pinecrest: 
 
The Government Finance Officers’ Association recommends that local governments publish within six 
(6) months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that 
recommendation, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Village of 
Pinecrest for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. 
 
This report is consistent with management’s representation of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances.  
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all the 
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, the 
Village of Pinecrest’s management has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is 
designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient 
reliable information for the preparation of the Village of Pinecrest’s financial statements in conformity 
with GAAP.  Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Village of 
Pinecrest’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, 
rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement.  As 
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete 
and reliable in all material respects. 
 
The Village of Pinecrest’s financial statements have been audited by Mauldin & Jenkins, a firm of 
licensed certified public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest for the fiscal year that ended September 
30, 2020, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amount and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation.  The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the Village of Pinecrest’s financial statements 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The 
independent auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.  
 
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany 
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A).  This 
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. 
The Village of Pinecrest’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent 
auditors. 
 
Profile of the Government 
The Village of Pinecrest was incorporated on March 12, 1996, pursuant to Ordinance 95-207 adopted 
by the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners on November 12, 1995.  The Village of Pinecrest 
occupies a land area of approximately 8 square miles and serves a population of 18,619.  The Village of 
Pinecrest receives tax levies on real and personal properties located within its boundaries. 
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The Village of Pinecrest has operated under the Council-Manager form of government since its 
inception.  Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the 
Mayor and four Council Members.  The Council is responsible for adopting ordinances, adopting the 
budget, and appointing the Village Manager, Village Clerk and Village Attorney.  The Village Manager 
is responsible for carrying out the policies and directives of the Council, for overseeing the day-to-day 
operations of the government, and for appointing department heads.   
 
The Village of Pinecrest offers a wide range of services, including, police protection, maintenance of 
roadways, parks and recreation, building, planning and zoning and stormwater services.  Certain services 
are provided through other governmental entities such as the Miami-Dade Fire and Rescue Department, 
Miami-Dade Public School Board and Miami-Dade County. 
 
The Village of Pinecrest has seven major departments:  Police, Building and Planning, Public Works, 
Parks & Recreation, Pinecrest Gardens and General Government.  General Government consists of the 
following sub-divisions: Village Council, Village Manager, Village Clerk, Finance, Information 
Technology, and Village Attorney. 
 
The annual budget serves as a foundation for the Village of Pinecrest’s financial planning and control.  
All departments of the Village are required to submit requests for appropriation to the Village Manager 
and these requests are the starting point for developing a proposed budget.  The Village Manager then 
presents this proposed budget to the Village Council for review.  The Village Council is required to hold 
public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than September 30th, the 
close of the Village’s fiscal year.  The appropriated budget is prepared by type of fund and department.  
No department may expend in excess of the amount appropriated for that department within an individual 
fund without the approval of the Village Manager. The Village Manager may make transfers of 
appropriations within a department.  Transfers of appropriations between departments require the 
approval of the Village Council through a budget amendment process.  The Village Council approves 
supplemental appropriations.  Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for the General 
Fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted.  The General Fund, budget to actual 
report is presented in the required supplemental information section of this report. 
 
Factors Affecting Financial Condition 
 
The information presented in the financial statements is best understood when it is considered from the 
broader perspective of the specific environment with which the Village of Pinecrest operates. 
 
Local economy.  Despite the challenges the Coronavirus pandemic has presented, the Village 
managed to maintain excellent stability. This medium sized municipality is an active community of 
involved citizens who take a genuine interest in the social, business, cultural and governing aspects 
of their Village. The Village is comprised of an affluent residential housing stock and several retail 
shopping malls. There is no industrial area in the community. 
 
Long-term financial planning.  The Village has undertaken several capital improvement projects 
as part of its five-year capital improvement plan. The Village of Pinecrest has provided funding for 
improvements at Pinecrest Gardens: new roof at the Concession structure and the Main Entrance, 
Hibiscus duct work, parking lot resurfacing, Bridal Room renovations and Upper Garden design; 
Community Center soccer field benches and shade structure, gym equipment, playground equipment 
and security cameras; Suniland Park new roof, lighting, playground renovation, dog park 
establishment, landscaping, shade structure and fencing; Greer Park new roof, painting, garage 
improvements, exercise equipment, and multipurpose floor renovations; Coral Pine tennis court 
lighting; Village Hall first floor repurpose, new roof, and interior building improvements; a truck for 
zoning, and Stormwater drainage improvements. 
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Financial policies. The Village of Pinecrest has the following financial policies: Operating Budget 
Policy, Capital Improvement Policy, Debt Management Policy, Revenue Policy, Investment Policy, 
Fund Balance Policy, Account, Auditing and Financial Reporting Policy, Audit Committee and 
Auditor Selection Policy, Capital Asset Policy, Travel Policy, Purchasing Policy, Retiree Health 
Care Policy, Fraud Policy, Construction Guarantee Policy and Credit Card Policy. The Revenue 
Policy establishes that all one-time revenues will be matched with expenditures to decrease the 
reliance on the fund balance. 
 
Pension.   The Village of Pinecrest sponsors a defined contribution pension plan 401(a) with the ICMA 
RC (International City/County Management Association, Retirement Corporation).  With the exception 
of sworn police personnel, full time employees contribute 7% of his or her pay to the plan, which is 
matched by a contribution by the Village of Pinecrest of 10% for general employees and 14.1% for 
department heads. 
 
A defined benefit plan sponsored by the Florida Retirement System (FRS) was established for sworn 
police personnel. Sworn police personnel who were employed at the time the defined benefit plan by 
FRS was established had the option of remaining in the 401(a) plan sponsored by the ICMA RC at the 
time. The 401(a) is now managed by VOYA Financial. All newly hired sworn police personnel 
participate in the FRS. 
 
Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest pension benefits can be found in Notes 3E of the 
financial statements. 
 
Awards and acknowledgements 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United State and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Village of Pinecrest for its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019.  This 
was the 24th year that the Village received this prestigious award.  In order to be awarded a Certificate 
of Achievement, the government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  The report submitted for the fiscal year 2019 satisfied both 
GAAP and applicable legal requirements. 
  
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.  We believe that our current CAFR 
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and it will be submitted it to 
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
 
The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services 
of the entire staff of the Finance Department.  We would like to express our appreciation to all members 
of the departments who assisted and contributed to the preparation of this report.  Credit must also be 
given to the Mayor and the Village Council for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest 
standards of professionalism in the management of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 

 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the Village 
    Council and Village Manager, 
Village of Pinecrest, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of 
Pinecrest, Florida (the “Village”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.   
 
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village as of September 30, 2020, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 − 14 and the Required Supplementary Information as listed in the 
table of contents on pages 51 − 60 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements.  The introductory section, combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary comparison schedules and statistical section, 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.   
 
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the budgetary comparison 
schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the budgetary comparison schedules are fairly stated, 
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.   
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The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them.  
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 24, 
2021, on our consideration of the Village’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Village’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Village's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  

 
 
 
 
Bradenton, Florida 
February 24, 2021 
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As management of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the “Village”), we offer the Village’s financial 
statements in this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village of Pinecrest 
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020.  We encourage readers to consider the information 
presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of 
transmittal. 
 
It is important to note that that the Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic affected not only the Village, but 
the entire world in unprecedented ways. Business as usual ceased to exist as we adapted to the new 
reality. Programs and funding sources were reduced and while spending was cut in areas such as travel 
and office supplies, many vendor contracts could not be paused or cancelled. The Village also had to 
undertake many steps to protect lives from the threat of the virus, which resulted in unbudgeted 
expenditures.  Despite the challenges the pandemic presented, the Village managed to maintain excellent 
stability. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 

 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Village exceeded its liabilities and deferred 
inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $81,012,723 (net position).  

 The government total net position decreased by $5,417,350. Many funding sources were delayed 
and even decreased, such as in the CITT fund for example. Some intergovernmental funding 
sources were also delayed creating the current year revenue shortfalls.  

 At the close of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest’s government funds reported 
combined ending fund balances of $8,141,218, a decrease of $1,928,558 in comparison with the 
prior year.  Approximately 62.3% of this total amount, $5,069,463 is available for spending at 
the government’s discretion (Unassigned Fund balance). While the financial position of the 
Village has decreased, the overall financial position continues to be excellent. While the cash and 
equivalent balances change is about $2.2 million of this decrease, and the AR about $1.3 million, 
the liabilities have remained relatively unchanged. The Village chose to invest in its 
infrastructure and community enhancements for the benefit of its citizens.  

 At the end of the current fiscal year, the Unassigned Fund balance for the General Fund was 
$5,069,463 or 20.1% of the total General Fund expenditures and transfers. 

 The Village of Pinecrest total bonded and bank debt decreased by $1,148,500 or 11.2% during 
the current fiscal year. 

 The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) receivable from damage due to 
Hurricane Irma of $1,759,020 from last year is now at $236,792 due to receipts of $1,536,977 
and adjustments of $14,749. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Village of Pinecrest’s basic 
financial statements. The Village’s basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) 
government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial 
statements.  This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial 
statements themselves. 
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Government-wide Financial Statement. The government-wide financial statements are designed to 
provide readers with a broad overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances in a manner similar to a 
private-sector business. 
 
The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village of Pinecrest’s assets, liabilities, 
and deferred inflow/outflow of resources with the difference between the two reported as net position.  
Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial 
position of the Village of Pinecrest is improving or deteriorating. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flow. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some that will only result in cash flow in the future fiscal 
periods (i.e. uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 
 
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village of Pinecrest that 
are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other 
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and 
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Village include general 
government, police and public works (including highways, parks, and planning and building). The 
business-type activities of the Village include stormwater activities. 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control 
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Village of Pinecrest, 
like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the Village are governmental and proprietary 
funds. 
 
Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the 
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term 
inflow and outflow of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at 
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term 
financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near term financing 
decisions. Both the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 
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The Village of Pinecrest maintains 11 individual governmental funds (eight special revenue funds, one 
Debt Service Fund, one Capital Projects Fund, and the General Fund). Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, Transportation Fund, CITT Public Transit 
Fund and Capital Projects funds as only these funds are considered to be major funds.  Data from the 
other funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual data for these non-major 
governmental funds are provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The Village of Pinecrest adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund as well as its other 
governmental funds.  A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to 
demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
Proprietary Fund.  The Village maintains one type of proprietary fund ̶ an Enterprise Fund.  Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The Village of Pinecrest uses an Enterprise Fund to account for its stormwater 
activities. 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail. The Proprietary Fund financial statements provide separate information for the 
Stormwater Fund, which is considered a major fund of the Village of Pinecrest. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds are 
presented immediately following the footnotes.   
 
Government-wide Financial Analysis 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. In the case of the Village of Pinecrest, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded 
liabilities and deferred inflows by $81,012,723 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. 
 
By far the largest portion of the Village’s net position $81,864,330 or 101.1% reflects its net investment 
in capital assets (i.e. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire 
those assets that are still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens. 
Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Village of Pinecrest’s 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources because the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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Village of Pinecrest Net Position 
 

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020

Current and other assets 13,527,475$      10,001,851$   1,479,883$ 2,191,680$ 15,007,358$   12,193,531$   

Capital assets 85,315,968        83,151,654     7,733,676   7,794,676   93,049,644     90,946,330     

Total assets 98,843,443        93,153,505     9,213,559   9,986,356   108,057,002   103,139,861   

Total deferred outflows
of resources 3,870,387          4,146,560       -                  -                  3,870,387       4,146,560       

Other liabilities 1,719,121          1,638,364       314,571      328,076      2,033,692       1,966,440       

Long-term liabilities 21,873,957        23,431,317     -                  -                  21,873,957     23,431,317     

Total liabilities 23,593,078        25,069,681     314,571      328,076      23,907,649     25,397,757     

Total deferred inflows
of resources 1,589,667          875,941          -                  -                  1,589,667       875,941          

Net position
Net investment in

capital assets 77,663,068        74,069,654     7,733,676   7,794,676   85,396,744     81,864,330     

Restricted 4,014,196          1,055,112       -                  -                  4,014,196       1,055,112       

Unrestricted (4,146,179)        (3,770,323)      1,165,312   1,863,604   (2,980,867)      (1,906,719)      
Total net position 77,531,085$      71,354,443$   8,898,988$ 9,658,280$ 86,430,073$   81,012,723$   

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
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Governmental Activities.  Governmental activities decreased the Village’s net position by $6,176,642. 
 Key elements in the changes in net position activity are as follows: 
 

Village of Pinecrest Changes in Net Position 
 

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
Revenues:
Program revenues:
  Charges for services 7,760,864$        5,698,783$     1,332,803$ 1,202,069$ 9,093,667$     6,900,852$     

  Operating grants and        

    contributions 2,486,526          633,533          -                  -                  2,486,526       633,533          

  Capital grants and      

    contributions 465,062             542,584          -                  -                  465,062          542,584          

General revenues:     

  Taxes 15,786,014        16,268,368     -                  -                  15,786,014     16,268,368     

  Other 2,482,781          2,063,841       35,600        13,600        2,518,381       2,077,441       

Total revenues 28,981,247        25,207,109     1,368,403   1,215,669   30,349,650     26,422,778     

Operating expenses:
  General government 3,983,332          4,370,432       -                  -                  3,983,332       4,370,432       

  Public safety 10,596,411        11,310,631     -                  -                  10,596,411     11,310,631     

  Building, planning and zoning 2,240,170          2,430,228       -                  -                  2,240,170       2,430,228       

  Parks and recreation 6,620,349          6,920,148       -                  -                  6,620,349       6,920,148       

  Public works 5,655,871          6,102,130       -                  -                  5,655,871       6,102,130       

  Interest 340,931             250,182          -                  -                  340,931          250,182          

  Stormwater -                        -                      602,662      456,377      602,662          456,377          

Total operating expenses 29,437,064        31,383,751     602,662      456,377      30,039,726     31,840,128     

Change in net position (455,817)           (6,176,642)      765,741      759,292      309,924          (5,417,350)      

Net position, beginning 77,986,902        77,531,085     8,133,247   8,898,988   86,120,149     86,430,073     
Net position, ending 77,531,085$      71,354,443$   8,898,988$ 9,658,280$ 86,430,073$   81,012,723$   

TotalsGovernmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
 

 Taxes of $16,268,368 comprised 64.5% of the total governmental revenues, of $25,207,109 
during the fiscal year. Most of this category is property taxes of $11,615,889. 

 
 Charges for services accounted for $5,698,783 or 22.6% of total governmental revenues. 
 
 Operating and capital grants and contributions accounted for $1,176,117 or 4.7% of total 

governmental revenues. This was a decrease from the prior year due to one-time revenues in 
2019 from FEMA Hurricane Irma cost reimbursements of $1,759,020. 
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Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities 
 

 
 
Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities 

 

 
 
In fiscal year 2020, The Village spent $383,149 (Public Safety expense category) for emergency 
protective services such as cleaning supplies and personal protective equipment for the safety of the 
employees and residents, and facilitating work from home. The Village has submitted claims to both the 
CARES Act and FEMA, as appropriate.  Revenues decreased by $3,926,872 or 12.9%, while expenses 
increased by $1,800,402 or 6.0%. As mentioned previously, due to COVID-19, many funding sources 
did not meet budgeted figures. The Village also chose to continue to invest in roads, infrastructure and 
other capital assets. Programming was cut due to stay at home and social distance requirements, but 
many expenses could not be reduced enough to meet the revenue shortfall.  
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The prior year also included $1,759,020 of FEMA obligated funds from Hurricane Irma, part of the 
operating grants and contributions line, which was a onetime event. The charges for services revenue 
category was less by $2,192,815 due to a reduction in parks and recreation programming revenue due to 
the pandemic. While the millage rate did not change from 2.399, the tax base or property values 
increased the ad valorem revenues increased. Taxes on a whole increased by $482,354. The capital and 
operating grants such as federal, state and county resources increased approximately $77,522.  
 
Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
The Village of Pinecrest used fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds.  The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide information on near 
term inflow, outflow and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the 
Village of Pinecrest’s financing requirements.  In particular, the Unassigned Fund balance may serve as 
a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Village of Pinecrest’s governmental funds (GAAP basis) 
reported combined ending fund balances of $8,141,218 a decrease of $1,928,558 or 19.2% in 
comparison with the prior year, $10,069,776. Approximately 62.3% of this total amount, $5,069,463, 
constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government’s discretion.  
The remainder of fund balance is not available for new spending or is assigned. The major reason for the 
decrease is the drop in revenues related to the COVID-19 pandemic coupled with a managed growth in 
expenses to continue the investment in infrastructure and the community. 
 
The General Fund had a minor increase of $49,137. This was accomplished during the pandemic by the 
receipt of the FEMA Hurricane Irma Funds of over $1.5 million (which were recorded as unavailable 
revenues in 2019) that met the shortfalls due to COVID-19 in areas such as Charges for Services, 
Licenses and Permits and Fines and Forfeitures, coupled with a reduction in relevant costs. The 
Transportation Fund decreased by $638,916 as the Village continued road projects as planned above and 
beyond planned revenues and used reserve funds. The CITT Fund decreased by $41,846 due to the loss 
of a transit grant that was lost due to the pandemic. The vendor that was paid with the grant continued 
until the advance notice to pause the service was met. Those months were paid out reserves instead of 
the budgeted grant not received. The Capital Fund decreased $1,596,211 as capital improvements were 
made using the note proceeds funded in the prior fiscal year. The Nonmajor governmental funds 
increased by $299,278 mostly in the impact fee funds, as projects for their expenditure are in 
development.    

 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village of Pinecrest.  At the end of the current fiscal 
year, the Unassigned Fund balance of the General Fund was $5,069,463.  As a measure of the General 
Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to 
total fund expenditures. Unassigned Fund balance is 20.1% of total General Fund expenditures including 
transfers, while total fund balance represents 32.3% of that same amount. 
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 The unassigned fund balance of the Village of Pinecrest’s General Fund decreased by a 
marginal amount of $2,193 during the current fiscal year.   

 The Police expenditures were under budget by $953,946 due to unfilled open positions and 
various capital projects that were not completed, of which $190,100 will be carried over for 
the purchase of police vehicles, a radar trailer and subpoena software.   

 General Government departments combined were under budget by $250,658 due to cancelled 
conferences, travel and many office related expenses due to the work at home shift. Some of 
this excess will be carried over into the next fiscal year:  $27,500 for a Compensation Study 
and employee appreciation events for Human Resources, and $10,000 for liquidated damages 
for contract cancellation and $10,000 for a security audit for the Finance department. 

 Public Works was under by $63,350 caused mainly by a change in the Director position 
which brought about savings in wages and fringes.  

 Parks and Recreation was under $623,184 due to the need to end or alter programs and 
operations offered due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  $33,695 will be carried over in 2021 for 
improvements to the parks, Community Center, and Pinecrest Gardens.  
  

The Debt Service Fund traditionally has no fund balance. The government transfers the exact amount 
needed for both principal and interest payments each year.  This year, due to the timing of a lost and 
reissued check, the transfers in exceeded the payments made in the year. This year $1,395,700 was 
transferred into the fund for principal payments, an increase of $112,600. This year $285,753 was 
transferred for interest payments, a decrease of $7,498. The total transfers in was $1,681,453 while the 
payments made were $1,403,087, leaving a fund balance of $278,366 for a 2020 payment that as voided 
and reissued in fiscal year 2021.  
 
Proprietary Fund.  The Stormwater Fund accounts for revenues collected for the maintenance of the 
stormwater collection function in the Village.  The Village maintains the canals and underground pipes 
and there are operational costs associated with treating the water.  This year the unrestricted net position 
went from $1,165,312 to $1,863,604, an increase of $698,292.  This increase reflects the fact that more 
funds were received than were spent on capital improvements this year. Those excess funds will be used 
for future year capital improvements, which are depreciated over many years. 
 
General Fund Budget Highlights 
 
The budget to actual variances in the General Fund were: 
 

 Fines and Forfeitures, $(380,487).  $380,487 was short of the budgeted revenues due to the 
decrease in red light camera violations in the Village. This was caused by the COVID-19 
pandemic where many people were home and not on the road. In addition, collections were 
made on stagnant liens from code violations.  

 Licenses and Permits, $(486,823).  $486,823 was short of the budgeted revenues due to the 
decrease construction value in permits, due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  Much construction 
was halted and/or delayed temporarily due to local orders. 
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 Charges for Services, $(755,685). $ 755,685 was short of the budgeted amount due to the 
stay at home orders and decrease in social interactions, which required a halt and or 
modification to the programming in the parks and Community Center and Pinecrest Gardens.  

 Intergovernmental Revenue, $1,350,204. $1,350,204 was earned in excess of the budgeted 
revenues. While many other line items in this category were short, the receipt of the FEMA 
Hurricane Irma funds incurred in fiscal year 18 was $1,536,977. This income, was not 
budgeted and provided for the overage in this category.  

 
During the year, budgetary revenues in were more than budgetary expenditures, increasing the fund 
balance by $3,263,115 or $ 49,137 when including the transfers in and out. 

 
The following highlights the reason for the budget amendments in the General Fund: 
 

 COVID-19 Emergency Protective Measures, $383,149, reimbursable by both the CARES 
Act and FEMA. 

 Village Hall roof repairs, $222,160, funded from FEMA Hurricane Irma grant. 
 Building, plumbing and electrical inspection contractor services, $19,853. 
 CITT fund shortage due to the loss of the FDOT grant for on demand transport. Eligibility 

was lost due to COVID-19 when the service was halted but the vendor agreement was still in 
effect, $27,000. 

 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital assets.  The Village of Pinecrest’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as 
of September 30th amounts to $83,151,654 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, equipment, roads, sidewalks, infrastructure, stormwater system, and 
construction in progress.  The total decrease in the Village’s investment in capital assets for the current 
fiscal year was 2.5%. 
 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 

 Stormwater improvements. 
 Renovations and improvements at Pinecrest Gardens, the Community Center and various parks. 
 Village-wide road improvement. 
 Village Hall roof and various building improvements, as well as a 1st floor repurpose. 
 Police, building, and planning vehicle additions. 
 Construction in Progress 
 Evelyn Greer Park:  New roof. 
 Suniland Park:  Dog park perimeter fencing. 
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2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020
General government 4,801,473$        5,357,717$     -$                -$                4,801,473$     5,357,717$     
Public safety 992,359             1,049,587       -                  -                  992,359          1,049,587       
Building, planning and zoning 62,501               85,174            -                  -                  62,501            85,174            
Parks 37,699,822        37,699,941     -                  -                  37,699,822     37,699,941     
Public works 41,759,813        38,959,235     -                  -                  41,759,813     38,959,235     
Stormwater -                        -                      7,733,676   7,794,676   7,733,676       7,794,676       

Total capital assets 85,315,968$      83,151,654$   7,733,676$ 7,794,676$ 93,049,644$   90,946,330$   

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 
Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest’s capital assets can be found in Note 2C. 
 
Long-term debt.  At the end of the fiscal year, the Village had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$9,082,000.   
 

Village of Pinecrest’s Outstanding Debt 
 

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020

Revenue bonds 10,230,500$      9,082,000$     -$                -$                10,230,500$   9,082,000$     
  Total debt 10,230,500$      9,082,000$     -$                -$                10,230,500$   9,082,000$     

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals

 
 

The Village of Pinecrest increased its total debt by $1,148,500 or 11.2% during the current fiscal year.  
There are five bond issues outstanding: Pinecrest Gardens refinancing (formerly known as Parrot 
Jungle), $1,060,000, which matures in fiscal year 2022, the Library/Community Center, $820,400, 
which matures in fiscal year 2024, Community Center/Coral Pines Park $3,812,900, which matures in 
fiscal year 2029, Pinecrest Gardens Improvements, $925,000 which matures in fiscal year 2030, and a 
Capital Improvements loan with an outstanding balance of $2,463,700, which matures in fiscal year 
2028. 
 
The Series 2011B bonds carry the following bond ratings: 
 

 Standard & Poor’s – AAA 
 Fitch – AA+.  The issuer default rating is AAA. 

 
Additional information on the Village of Pinecrest’s long-term debt can be found in Note 2E. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 
 

 The COVID-19 pandemic continues to be of concern. While the budget for next year was 
prepared with this in mind, the uncertainty of when we can return to “normal” lingers.  

 Property values in the Village continue to grow and have allowed for a minor reduction in the 
millage rate from 2.399 to 2.35, while not affecting the tax revenues for the 2021 year.  
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During the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance for governmental funds decreased to 
$5,069,463, a minor drop which still allows the Village financial flexibility. The Village also has 
$1,355,991 of fund balance in the Capital Projects Fund that is either restricted or assigned for various 
capital improvement projects.   
 
Requests for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of Pinecrest’s finances.  
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Department of Finance, 12645 Pinecrest Parkway, Pinecrest, 
Florida 33156-5931 or emailed to finance@pinecrest-fl.gov. 
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Primary Government
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8,770,314$     2,125,628$     10,895,942$     
Receivables, net 1,208,224       66,052            1,274,276         
Prepaid items 23,313            -                      23,313              
Capital assets

Non-depreciable 17,019,954     -                      17,019,954       
Depreciable, net 66,131,700     7,794,676       73,926,376       

Total assets 93,153,505     9,986,356       103,139,861     

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows - pension 4,017,811       -                      4,017,811         
Deferred outflows - OPEB 119,178          -                      119,178            
Deferred charge on refunding 9,571              -                      9,571                

Total deferred outflows 4,146,560       -                      4,146,560         

Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,259,669       22,818            1,282,487         
Accrued liabilities 296,821          -                      296,821            
Unearned revenue 81,874            305,258          387,132            
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year 2,749,839       -                      2,749,839         
Due in more than one year 20,681,478     -                      20,681,478       

Total liabilities 25,069,681     328,076          25,397,757       

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows - pension 809,474          -                      809,474            
Deferred inflows - OPEB 56,649            -                      56,649              
Deferred gain on refunding 9,818              -                      9,818                

Total deferred inflows 875,941          -                      875,941            

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 74,069,654     7,794,676       81,864,330       
Restricted for

Transportation 577,520          -                      577,520            
Public safety 99,041            -                      99,041              
General government 69,324            -                      69,324              
Parks 30,861            -                      30,861              
Debt service 278,366          -                      278,366            

Unrestricted (3,770,323)      1,863,604       (1,906,719)        
Total net position 71,354,443$   9,658,280$     81,012,723$     

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITT Public Capital Nonmajor Total
General Transportation Transit Projects Governmental Governmental
 Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6,304,808$   490,748$         413$                  1,515,580$     458,765$         8,770,314$     
Receivables, net 1,056,979     -                       132,418             -                      18,827             1,208,224        
Prepaid items 23,313           -                       -                         -                      -                       23,313             

Total assets 7,385,100$   490,748$         132,831$           1,515,580$     477,592$         10,001,851$   

Liabilities, deferred inflows, and fund balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable 1,054,021$   46,059$           -$                       159,589$        -$                     1,259,669$     
Accrued liabilities 282,298        -                       -                         -                      -                       282,298           
Unearned revenue 81,874           -                       -                         -                      -                       81,874             

Total liabilities 1,418,193     46,059             -                         159,589          -                       1,623,841        

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue 236,792        -                       -                         -                      -                       236,792           

Fund balances
Nonspendable 23,313           -                       -                         -                      -                       23,313             
Restricted

Transportation -                     444,689           132,831             -                      -                       577,520           
Public safety -                     -                       -                         -                      99,041             99,041             
General government -                     -                       -                         -                      69,324             69,324             
Parks -                     -                       -                         -                      30,861             30,861             
Debt service -                     -                       -                         -                      278,366           278,366           

Committed
Sidewalk improvements 28,739           -                       -                         -                      -                       28,739             

Assigned
Subsequent year's budget 290,795        -                       -                         -                      -                       290,795           
Health Care 317,805        -                       -                         -                      -                       317,805           
Capital improvements -                     -                       -                         1,355,991       -                       1,355,991        

Unassigned 5,069,463     -                       -                         -                      -                       5,069,463        
Total fund balances 5,730,115     444,689           132,831              1,355,991       477,592           8,141,218        
Total liabilities and fund balances 7,385,100$   490,748$         132,831$           1,515,580$     477,592$         

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are 

not reported in the funds.
Governmental capital assets 225,677,814$  
Accumulated depreciation (142,526,160)   83,151,654     

Deferred outflows, deferred inflows, and the net pension liability and total OPEB liability related to the
Village's pension and OPEB plans and bonds are not expected to be liquidated with expendable available
financial resources and, therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deferred outflows - pension 4,017,811        
Deferred inflows - pension (809,474)          
Deferred outflows - OPEB 119,178           
Deferred inflows - OPEB (56,649)            
Deferred charge on refunding 9,571               
Deferred gain on refunding (9,818)              
Total OPEB liability (305,958)          
Bonds payable (9,082,000)       
Net pension liability (13,413,667)     (19,531,006)    

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are therefore not 
reported in the funds.

Accrued interest payable (14,523)            
Compensated absences (629,692)          (644,215)         

Net position of governmental activities 71,354,443$   

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITT Public Capital Nonmajor Total
General Transportation Transit Projects Governmental Governmental
 Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Revenues
Taxes 15,834,811$  433,557$         -$                -$                -$                   16,268,368$   
Licenses and permits 2,228,177     -                       -                  -                  -                     2,228,177       
Intergovernmental revenues 3,617,409     -                       732,946       24,534        58,114            4,433,003       
Charges for services 1,919,255     -                       -                  -                  -                     1,919,255       
Fines and forfeitures 1,482,313     -                       -                  -                  10,924            1,493,237       
Impact fees -                    -                       -                  -                  92,630            92,630           
Investment earnings 88,073          12,148             -                  14,482        537                 115,240         
Miscellaneous revenues 117,430        50,000             11,997         -                  -                     179,427         

Total revenues 25,287,468    495,705           744,943       39,016        162,205          26,729,337     

Expenditures
Current

General government 4,040,272     -                       -                  -                  -                     4,040,272       
Public safety 9,400,704     -                       -                  -                  107,475          9,508,179       
Emergency and disaster relief 383,149        -                       -                  -                  -                     383,149         
Building, planning and zoning 2,408,787     -                       -                  -                  -                     2,408,787       
Public works 863,820        1,108,631        813,789       -                  -                     2,786,240       
Parks and recreation 4,927,621     -                       -                  180,703      -                     5,108,324       

Capital outlay -                    -                       -                  2,986,039   33,818            3,019,857       
Debt service

Principal retirement -                    -                       -                  -                  1,148,500       1,148,500       
Interest -                    -                       -                  -                  254,587          254,587         

Total expenditures 22,024,353    1,108,631        813,789       3,166,742   1,544,380       28,657,895     

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 3,263,115     (612,926)          (68,846)       (3,127,726)  (1,382,175)     (1,928,558)     

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in -                    -                       27,000         1,531,515   1,681,453       3,239,968       
Transfers out (3,213,978)    (25,990)            -                  -                  -                     (3,239,968)     

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,213,978)    (25,990)            27,000         1,531,515   1,681,453       -                     

Change in fund balances 49,137          (638,916)          (41,846)       (1,596,211)  299,278          (1,928,558)     

Fund balances, beginning of year 5,680,978     1,083,605        174,677       2,952,202   178,314          10,069,776     
Fund balances, end of year 5,730,115$    444,689$         132,831$     1,355,991$ 477,592$        8,141,218$     

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net Change in Fund Balances − Total Governmental Funds (1,928,558)$  

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of these assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Capital outlay 4,585,141$ 
Less current year depreciation (6,749,455)  (2,164,314)    

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported in the funds.

Unavailable intergovernmental revenue (1,522,228)    

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in compensated absences (130,895)     
Change in accrued interest 5,919           
Amortization of deferred charge and gain on refunding (1,514)         
OPEB expense (20,303)       
Pension expense (1,563,249)  (1,710,042)    

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repaymenbt of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. 
Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.

General obligation bond principal repayments 1,148,500     

Change in net position of governmental activities (6,176,642)$  

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Stormwater
Fund

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,125,628$    
Accounts receivable 66,052           

Total current assets 2,191,680      

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, depreciable, net 7,794,676      

Total noncurrent assets 7,794,676      
Total assets 9,986,356$    

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 22,818$         
Unearned revenue 305,258         

Total liabilities 328,076         

Net position
Investment in capital assets 7,794,676      
Unrestricted 1,863,604      

Total net position 9,658,280$    

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Stormwater
Fund

Operating revenues
Charges for services 1,202,069$    

Total operating revenues 1,202,069      

Operating expenses
Cost of sales 260,511         
Depreciation 195,866         

Total operating expenses 456,377         

Operating income 745,692         

Nonoperating revenue
Investment earnings 13,600           

Total nonoperating revenue 13,600           
 

Change in net position 759,292         

Total net position, beginning of year 8,898,988      
Total net position, end of year 9,658,280$    

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Stormwater
Fund

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers 1,256,254$    
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (262,606)        

Net cash provided by operating activities 993,648         

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (256,866)        

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (256,866)        

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 13,600           

Net cash provided by investing activities 13,600           

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 750,382         

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,375,246      
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 2,125,628$    

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Operating income 745,692$       
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 195,866         

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable 38,585           
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (2,095)            
Unearned revenues 15,600           

Net cash provided by operating activities 993,648$       

PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A.  Reporting entity 
 
The Village of Pinecrest (the “Village”) was incorporated March 12, 1996, pursuant to Ordinance 95-
207 adopted by the Miami-Dade Board of County Commissioners November 12, 1995.  The Village 
occupies a land area of eight square miles and serves a population of 18,467. The Village operates under 
a Council-Manager form of government and provides the following services: public safety (police), 
public works, building, planning and zoning, code enforcement, stormwater management, and parks and 
recreation. The basic financial statements of the Village have been prepared in conformity with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units, which are 
generally accepted in the United States. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental and financial reporting principles.   
 
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with the GASB, the reporting entity, which 
establishes standards for defining and reporting on the financial reporting entity. The definition of the 
financial reporting entity is based upon the concept that elected officials are accountable to their 
constituents for their actions. One of the objectives of financial reporting is to provide users of financial 
statements with a basis for assessing the accountability of the elected officials. The financial reporting 
entity consists of the Village, organizations for which the Village is financially accountable and other 
organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the Village are such that 
exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financials statements to be misleading or incomplete. The 
Village is financially accountable for a component unit if it appoints a voting majority of the 
organization’s governing board and it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential 
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the 
Village.  Based upon the application of these criteria, there were no organizations that met the criteria 
described above. 
 
B.  Government-wide and fund financial statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statements of net position and the statement of 
changes in net position) report information on all activities of the Village of Pinecrest. The effect of 
interfund activity has been removed from these statements.  Governmental activities, which normally are 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment is offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  Separate financial statements are provided 
for governmental funds and the proprietary fund. Major individual governmental funds and major 
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
C.  Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting is used for the proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues 
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met.   
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the 
Village considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days of the end of the current 
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual 
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.   
 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is 
received by the Village. 
 
The Village reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

 The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources 
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

 The Transportation Fund receives grants from the state of Florida and from Miami-Dade 
County to be used to account for and report resources restricted or committed to the 
improvement of the Village’s roadway system. The primary sources of revenue are 
intergovernmental grants from a portion of the gasoline sales tax and a Miami-Dade County 
share of a ½ cent sales tax to be used for non-public transportation. 

 The CITT Public Transit Fund reports on the public transit funds received from a portion of the 
transportation sales tax. 

 The Capital Projects Fund receives transfers from the general fund as well as grants and 
accounts for purchases of land and improvements to the parks and buildings in the community. 

 
The Village reports its only proprietary fund as a major fund: 
 

 The Stormwater Fund (an enterprise fund) accounts for the stormwater control activities of the 
community.  Funds are received from business and residential users and used to maintain the 
stormwater collection system. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
C.  Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued) 
 
Additionally, the Village reports other special revenue funds and a debt service fund.  
 
As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the governments various 
functions. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for 
the various functions concerned. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and 
contributions. General revenues include all taxes. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.  Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of 
the stormwater fund are charges to business and residential customers for stormwater system 
maintenance.  Operating expenses report on the costs to maintain the stormwater system, the cost of 
sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
D.  Assets, liabilities deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance 
 
1.  Deposits and investments 
 
Cash and cash equivalents, which are cash and short-term investments with maturities of three months or 
less, include cash on hand, a repurchase agreement and investments with the State Board of 
Administration Investment Pool.  Investments are reported at fair value. 
 
2.  Capital assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, land, rights of way, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e. 
roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business- 
type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the 
government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 (amount not rounded) and an 
estimated useful life in excess of three years.  Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets, donated works of art and similar 
items, and capital assets received in a service concession arrangement are recorded at acquisition value.  
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Assets, liabilities deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance 
 (continued) 
 
2.  Capital assets (continued) 
 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend assets lives are not capitalized.  Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized 
as projects are constructed.   
 
Capital assets of the Village are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 
 

Buildings 40 years
Improvements 15 years
Equipment

Cars 5 years
Trucks 10 years
Equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Computer software 7 years
Infrastructure

Roads 25 years
Stormwater system 50 years
Sidewalks 20 years

 
 

3.  Deferred outflows/inflows of resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Village only has three items 
that qualify for reporting in this category. One is the deferred charge on refunding resulting from the 
difference in the carrying value of a refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred 
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  The other two items are the 
deferred outflows relating to the pension plan (discussed in Note 3E) and the deferred outflows relating 
to the OPEB plan (discussed in Note 2G). 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Village has three items that qualify for reporting 
in this category.  One is a deferred gain on refunding that results from the difference in the carrying 
value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.   
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Assets, liabilities deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance 
 (continued) 
 
3.  Deferred outflows/inflows of resources (continued) 
 
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  The 
second item is the deferred inflows relating to the pension plans and the OPEB plan. These are discussed 
in further detail in Note 3E and Note 2G. The Village also has one other type of these items, which 
arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. 
Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. 
The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from certain charges for services and fines and 
these amounts are deferred and will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the period in which the 
amounts become available. 
 
4. Compensated absences 
 
Village employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on length of service 
and the department that the employee services. The Village’s sick leave policy is to permit employees to 
accumulate earned but unused sick pay benefits.  Such leave is accrued and reported as a fund liability 
when it is probable that the Village will compensate the employee in the following fiscal year.  Unused 
sick pay is not paid at termination. 
 
The Village’s vacation policy is that earned vacation must be taken within one year of the employee’s 
anniversary. Carryover is limited to two hundred and forty (240) hours.  Unused vacation pay, if any, is 
paid with the employee’s termination or retirement.  Those amounts estimated to be liquidated with 
expendable available financial resources from the General Fund are reported as expenditures and a fund 
liability of the General Fund. 
 
5.  Long-term obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are 
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-type activities. Bond 
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest 
method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.   
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts 
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as another financing source.  
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other financing uses.   
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Assets, liabilities deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance 
 (continued) 
 
6.  Property taxes 
 
Property taxes for the current year were assessed and collected by Miami-Dade County and 
subsequently remitted to the Village.  Property taxes are assessed as of January 1 each year and are first 
billed (levied) and due the following November 1.  Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties 
and the collection of all county, municipal, school board and special district property taxes are 
consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and County Tax Collector.  The laws for 
the state regulating tax assessments are also designed to assure a consistent property valuation method 
statewide.  State statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills ($10 per 
$1,000 of assessed taxable valuation).  The millage rate assessed by the Village for the year ended 
September 30, 2020, was 2.399 mills. 
 
The tax levy of the Village is established by the Village Council prior to October 1 of each year, and the 
County Property Appraiser incorporates the millage into the tax levy, which includes Miami-Dade 
County, Miami-Dade County School Board and special taxing districts. 
 
All property is reassessed according to its fair market value as of January 1 of each year. Each 
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the State Department of Revenue for review to 
determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of State Statutes. 
 
All real and tangible personal property taxes are due and payable on November 1, each year or as soon 
as practicable thereafter as the assessment roll is certified by the County Property Appraiser.  Miami-
Dade County mails to each property owner on the assessment roll a notice of the taxes due and Miami-
Dade County also collects the taxes for the Village.  Taxes may be paid upon receipt of such notice from 
Miami-Dade County, with discounts at the rate of 4% if paid in the month of November, 3% if paid in 
the month of December, 2% if paid in the month of January and 1% if paid in the month of February.  
Taxes paid during the month of March are without discount, and all unpaid taxes on real and tangible 
personal property become delinquent and liens are placed on April 1 of the year following the year in 
which taxes were assessed.  Procedures for the collection of delinquent taxes by Miami-Dade County are 
provided for in the laws of Florida.  There were no material delinquent property taxes at September 30, 
2020. 
 
7.  Use of estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts 
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes.  Although these estimates are based on 
management’s knowledge of current events and actions it may undertake in the future, they may 
ultimately differ from actual results. 
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NOTE 1  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Assets, liabilities deferred outflows/inflows of resources and net position/fund balance  
 (continued) 
 
8. Encumbrances 
 
Encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control and 
accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. While all appropriations and 
encumbrances lapse at year-end, valid outstanding encumbrances may be re-appropriated and become 
part of the subsequent year’s budget pursuant to state regulations. There were no outstanding 
encumbrances at year-end.  
 
9. Date of management review 
 
Subsequent events were evaluated by management through February 24, 2021, which is the date the 
financial statements were available to be issued. 

 
NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 
 
A.  Deposits and investments 
 
Deposits 
In addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, all deposits are held 
in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida to hold public funds.  
Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, the State Treasurer 
requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or banking institution 
eligible collateral. In the event of a failure of a qualified public depository, the remaining public 
depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses.   
 
Investments 
The Village invests surplus funds in an external investment pool, the Local Government Surplus Funds 
Trust Fund (Florida PRIME). The State Pool is administered by the Florida State Board of 
Administration (SBA), who provides regulatory oversight.  
 
The Florida Prime has adopted operating procedures consistent with the requirement for 2a-7 like fund. 
The Village’s investment in the Florida PRIME is reported at amortized cost. The fair value of the 
position in the pool is equal to the value of the pool shares. These investments are exempt from fair 
value hierarchy level disclosure. The Village had the following investments as of September 30, 2020: 
 

Investment Maturities Fair Value

Florida Prime 6,361,131$    48 days weighted average 
days to maturity  
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
A.  Deposits and investments (continued) 
 
Credit risk 
The Village has an investment policy that emphasis the safety of principal while maintaining adequate 
liquidity to meet its needs.  Investments are limited to the highest ratings by two of the nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations - Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization 
(NRSRO) and Standard and Poor’s and Moody’s Investment Services. The Florida PRIME is rated 
AAAm by Standard and Poor’s. 
 
Concentration credit risk 
GASB Statement 40 requires disclosure when the percent is 5% or more in any one issuer. External 
investment pools are exempt from Concentration and Interest Rate Risk disclosures. 
 
Interest rate risk 
In accordance with our investment policy, the Village manages its exposure to declines in fair values by 
investing in conservative investments with the emphasis on safety of principal. 
 
B.  Receivables 
 
Receivables as of September 30, 2020, for the Village’s individual major and nonmajor funds, in the 
aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: 
 

CITT Public Non-Major
General Transit Governmental Stormwater

Fund Fund Funds Fund Total
Receivables

Intergovernmental 376,766$    132,418$  18,709$        -$             527,893$    
Franchise and utility 641,256      -                -                   -               641,256      
Ad valorem taxes 29,220        -                -                   -               29,220        
Fines 6,529          -                118               -               6,647          
Accounts 1,342          -                -                   66,052      67,394        
Other 1,866          -                -                   -               1,866          
Less allowance for 

uncollectible -                  -                -                   -               -                  
1,056,979$ 132,418$  18,827$        66,052$    1,274,276$ 
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
B.  Receivables (continued) 
 
Total unearned revenues as of September 30, 2020, are as follows: 

Occupational taxes collected in advance 81,874$       
Stormwater utility charges collected in advance 305,258       

387,132$     

 
C.  Capital assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2020, was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 16,959,440$   -$                 -$                 16,959,440$   
Construction in progress 36,340            60,514          (36,340)        60,514            

Total assets not being depreciated 16,995,780     60,514          (36,340)        17,019,954     

Capital assets being depreciated
Buildings 27,076,383     1,180,136     -                   28,256,519     
Improvements other than buildings 9,615,021       1,944,279     -                   11,559,300     
Machinery and equipment 5,247,017       471,469        -                   5,718,486       
Computer software 274,711          -                   -                   274,711          
Infrastructure 161,883,761   965,083        -                   162,848,844   

Total assets being depreciated 204,096,893   4,560,967     -                   208,657,860   

Less accumulated depreciation
Buildings (6,064,004)     (801,923)      -                   (6,865,927)     
Improvements other than buildings (5,327,566)     (471,377)      -                   (5,798,943)     
Machinery and equipment (3,725,347)     (474,301)      -                   (4,199,648)     
Computer software (235,584)        (15,426)        -                   (251,010)        
Infrastructure (120,424,204) (4,986,428)   -                   (125,410,632) 

Total accumulated depreciation (135,776,705) (6,749,455)   -                   (142,526,160) 
Total assets depreciated, net 68,320,188     (2,188,488)   -                   66,131,700     
Governmental activities, net 85,315,968$   (2,127,974)$ (36,340)$      83,151,654$   
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
C.  Capital assets (continued) 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deletions Balance

Business-type Activities
Capital assets being depreciated

Infrastructure 10,336,612$   256,866$       -$                  10,593,478$   
Total assets being depreciated 10,336,612     256,866         -                    10,593,478     

Less accumulated depreciation
Infrastructure (2,602,936)      (195,866)       -                    (2,798,802)      

Total accumulated depreciation (2,602,936)      (195,866)       -                    (2,798,802)      
Business-type activities, net 7,733,676$     61,000$         -$                  7,794,676$     

 
Depreciation expense was charged to function/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 

Governmental activities:
General government 347,340$        
Public safety 346,588          
Building, planning and zoning 15,952            
Public works 5,024,952       
Parks and recreation 1,014,623       

6,749,455$     

Business-type activities:
Stormwater 195,866$        

 
D.  Transfers 
 
The composition of interfund transfers as of September 30, 2020, is as follows: 
 

Transfers out Transfers in Amount Purpose
General Fund Debt Service Fund 1,655,463$    To provide debt service funds
General Fund Capital Projects Fund 1,531,515      To provide capital funds
General Fund CITT Public Transit Fund 27,000           To provide operational funds
  Total General Fund 3,213,978$    

Transportation Fund Debt Service Fund 25,990$         To provide debt service funds
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
E.  Long-term debt 
 
The Village has five debt issues outstanding at September 30, 2020, all of which are considered direct 
borrowings.  Series 2011-2 was for capital improvements at Pinecrest Gardens and the Community 
Center. The 2011 series bonds bear interest rates from 2.0–5.0 %. Series 2012 was for the refunding of 
bonds for purchasing and developing Pinecrest Gardens and has a 3.25% interest rate. Series 2014 is for 
refunding the construction costs of the Library/Community Center at Pinecrest Gardens, $3,075,000 and 
bears interest at 2.1%. Series 2015 is for the expansion of the Community Center and improvements at 
Coral Pines Park. The Series 2019 was issued in the amount of $2,617,100 to provide funding for 
various capital projects including improvement of the Community Center, the Municipal Center/Library, 
Pinecrest Gardens, and other parks within the Village.  The principal and interest on these bonds are 
payable from a covenant to budget and appropriate legally available non-ad valorem revenues.   
 
Maturities of these direct borrowings are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
September 30, Principal Interest Total

2021 2,214,600$    269,508$       2,484,108$    
2022 931,800         190,548         1,122,348      
2023 956,800         166,070         1,122,870      
2024 982,000         135,840         1,117,840      
2025 793,000         110,126         903,126         

2026 - 2030 3,203,800      220,696         3,424,496      
9,082,000$    1,092,788$    10,174,788$  

 
Changes in long-term liabilities of governmental activities during the year are summarized as follows: 
 

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental activities
Direct borrowings:
  Bonds payable 10,230,500$  -$                (1,148,500)$  9,082,000$    2,214,600$  
Total OPEB liability 230,053         99,094         (23,189)         305,958         -                  
Net pension liability 10,914,607    5,256,010    (2,756,950)    13,413,667    -                  
Compensated absences 498,797         750,797       (619,902)       629,692         535,239       

Total governmental activities 21,873,957$  6,105,901$  (4,548,541)$  23,431,317$  2,749,839$  
 

 
Compensated absences are paid from the General Fund in the form of vacation pay. The total OPEB 
liability and the net pension liability are generally liquidated by the General Fund.  
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
F.  Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities 
 
Accounts payable as of fiscal year end for the Village’s individual major and nonmajor funds, in the 
aggregate are as follows: 
 

Capital 
General Transportation Projects Stormwater

 Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals
Payables:
  Payroll 552,703$    -$                 -$             -$             552,703$    
  Vendors 527,909      46,059          159,589   22,818     756,375      
  Security deposits 223,129      -                   -               -               223,129      
  Other 32,578        -                   -               -               32,578        
    Total payables 1,336,319$ 46,059$        159,589$ 22,818$   1,564,785$ 

 
G.  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 
 
1. Description 
 
The Village administers a single-employer OPEB plan. The purpose of this plan is to account for the 
implicit rate subsidy the Village provides to its retirees Florida Statutes require that municipalities 
provide their retirees access to the same health insurance programs as their current employees at the 
same rates.  Since the inclusion of the retirees results in higher overall health insurance costs to the 
municipality which cannot be passed on to the retirees, it in effect results in what is called the implicit 
rate subsidy.  This is the only post-employment benefit the Village provides to its retirees other than its 
pension plan.  
 
Membership in the plan consisted of the following at September 30, 2020: 
 

Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 2
Active employees 143
     Total 145

 
Separate financial statements for the Village’s OPEB plan are not available.  Funds from the General 
Fund are used to liquidate the total OPEB liability. 
 
This actuarial valuation involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, 
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.  
 
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the 
employer are subject to constant revision as actual experience is compared with past expectations and 
new estimates are made about the future.  
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
G.  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Calculations are based upon the types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the 
time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and plan members to 
that point. Calculations reflect a long-term prospective, so methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets. 
 
Benefits Provided:  
Retirees and their dependents can continue participating in the group insurance plans offered by the 
Village, but they are required to contribute 100% of the active premiums. 
 
Total OPEB liability of the Village 
The Village’s total OPEB liability was measured as of September 30, 2019, and was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2018, with the actuary using standard techniques to roll forward the 
liability to the measurement date. 
 
Actuarial assumptions: The total OPEB liability in the October 1, 2018, actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 

Inflation Rate:  Same as Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
Salary Increase: 3.00% 
Discount Rate:  3.58% 
Initial Trend Rate:  7.00% 
Ultimate Trend Rate: 5.00% by 2022/2023 
Participation Rate:  10% 

 
For general employees, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 mortality tables. For female lives, 
100% of the white-collar table was used. For male lives, a 50% white collar table, 50% blue collar table 
blend was used. All tables include fully generational adjustments for mortality improvements using 
improvement scale BB. For disabled lives, mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 sex-distinct 
disabled mortality tables with female lives set forward two years, male lives set back four years. 
Disabled mortality has not been adjusted for mortality improvements.  
 
Discount Rate:  
Given the Village’s decision not to fund the program, all future benefit payments were discounted using 
a municipal bond rate of 3.58%.  
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
G.  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Changes in the total OPEB liability for the Village for the year ended September 30, 2020, were as 
follows: 

Total OPEB
Liability

Balances at September 31, 2019 230,053$     
Changes for the year:
  Service cost 25,752         
  Interest 8,898           
  Differences between expected and actual experience (8,545)          
  Changes of assumptions 64,444         
  Changes of benefit terms -                   
  Benefit payments (14,644)        
  Other changes -                   
Balances at September 31, 2020 305,958$     

 
There were no significant changes in assumptions since the prior measurement date.  
 
The required schedule of changes in the Village’s total OPEB liability and related ratios immediately 
following the notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about the total 
OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate.  The following presents the 
total OPEB liability of the Village, as well as what the Village’s total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (2.58%) or 1-percentage-point higher 
(4.58%) than the current discount rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(2.58%) (3.58%) (4.58%)

Total OPEB liability 335,068$     305,958$               280,272$      
 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following 
presents the total OPEB liability of the Village, as well as what the Village’s total OPEB liability would 
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

 
Healthcare Cost

Trend Rates
1% Decrease (7% down to 5%) 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability 271,331$     305,958$               347,713$      
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
G.  Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) (continued) 
 
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual 
revisions as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.  
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective.  Calculations are based on the substantive plan in 
effect as of September 30, 2020, and the current sharing pattern of costs between employer and inactive 
employees. 
 
OPEB expense and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB 
For the year ended September 30, 2020, the Village recognized OPEB expense of $24,503. At 
September 30, 2020, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and 45,628$               7,803$              
  actual experience
Change of assumptions 58,850                 48,846              
Village contributions subsequent to the 14,700                 -                        
 measurement date

119,178$             56,649$            

 
The deferred outflows of resources related to the OPEB Plan, totaling $14,700 resulting from Village 
contributions to the plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the 
net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB Plan will be recognized in 
OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30: Amount

2021 4,497$                  
2022 4,497                    

2023 4,497                    

2024 4,497                    

2025 4,497                    
Thereafter 25,344                   
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
H.  Equity classification and policies  
 
Fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows: 
 
Non-spendable – amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form or because 
they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
Restricted – amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions, 
charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by 
creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Committed – amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of 
Village Council. Village Council is the highest level of decision making authority for the Village. 
Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions 
approved by Village Council. It is equally difficult to remove the constraint provide by an ordinance or a 
resolution. 
 
Assigned – amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are 
intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the Village’s adopted policy, only Village Council may 
assign amounts for specific purposes.  
 
Unassigned – all other spendable amounts. The General Fund is the only fund that reports a positive 
unassigned fund balance. In other governmental founds it is not appropriate to report a positive 
unassigned fund balance amount. However, in government funds other than the General Fund, if 
expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed the amounts that are restricted, committed, or 
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned fund balance in that 
fund. 
 
Fund balance flow assumptions: 
Sometimes the Village will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted 
resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). In order to calculate the 
amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental 
fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are 
considered to be applied. It is the Village’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been 
depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the 
components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is 
depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.  Unassigned fund balance is applied last.  
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
H.  Equity Classification and policies (continued) 
 
Fund balance policy: 
The Village of Pinecrest will maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance in the General Fund of 10% 
of budgeted expenditures and transfers out. The Village shall strive to keep an additional unassigned 
fund balance for extraordinary expenditures and mitigation due to the Village being located in a 
hurricane zone. That amount is to be determined each year by Council during the budget process. 
 
As of September 30, 2020, fund balances are composed of the following: 
 

CITT Public Capital Nonmajor
General Transportation Transit Projects Governmental

 Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Totals
Nonexpendable
  Prepaids 23,313$       -$                    -$                  -$                  -$                     23,313$         
Restricted
  Transportation -                    444,689         132,831       -                    -                       577,520         
  Public safety -                    -                      -                    -                    99,041            99,041           
  General government -                    -                      -                    -                    69,324            69,324           
  Parks -                    -                      -                    -                    30,861            30,861           
  Debt service -                    -                      -                    -                    278,366          278,366         
Committed
  Sidewalk improvements 28,739         -                      -                    -                    -                       28,739           
Assigned
  Capital projects -                    -                      -                    1,355,991    -                       1,355,991      
  Health Care 317,805       -                      -                    -                    -                       317,805         
  Subsequent year
    appropriations 290,795       -                      -                    -                    -                       290,795         
Unassigned 5,069,463    -                      -                    -                    -                       5,069,463      
    Total fund balances 5,730,115$ 444,689$       132,831$     1,355,991$ 477,592$        8,141,218$    

 
Government-wide and proprietary fund statements 
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components. 
 

A. Net investment in capital assets – consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or improvements of those assets. 
 

B. Restricted – consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by: (1) external 
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulation of other governments, or (2) 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 

C. Unrestricted – consists of all other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or 
“net investment in capital assets”. 
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NOTE 2  DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 
 
H.  Equity classification and policies (continued) 
 
Net position flow assumption: 
Sometimes the Village will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (i.e. restricted bond 
or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – 
net position and unrestricted – net position in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be 
applied. It is the Village’s policy to consider restricted – net position to have been depleted before 
unrestricted – net position is applied. 
 
NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
A.  Risk management 
 
The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of or damage to and destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters for which the Village carries 
insurance through the Florida League of Cities. There were no significant reductions in insurance 
coverage from the coverage in the prior year. There were no settled claims that have exceeded insurance 
coverage for each of the past three years. 
 
B.  Litigation 
 
The Village is a defendant in various lawsuits incidental to its operations. Although the outcome of these 
lawsuits is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the Village’s management and legal counsel 
that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the 
Village. 
 
C.  Contingent liabilities 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the 
applicable funds. In the opinion of management, future disallowances of grant expenditures, if any, 
would not have a material adverse effect on the Village’s financial condition. 
 
During March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus outbreak a global 
pandemic. Actions taken around the world to help mitigate the spread of the Coronavirus include 
restrictions on travel, quarantines in certain areas, and forced closures for certain types of public places 
and businesses. The Coronavirus and actions taken to mitigate it have had, and are expected to continue 
to have an adverse impact on the local economies. The ultimate impact of the pandemic on the Village’s 
results of operations, financial position, and liquidity cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. 
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D.  Interlocal agreement 
 
On June 17, 1997, the Village entered into an interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade County to pass 
thru the Village’s share of the franchise fee on electricity collected by Florida Power and Light.  Under 
this agreement, the County remitted $656,497 to the Village for the fiscal year ending September 30, 
2020.  This agreement will be in effect as long as the ordinance establishing the collection of these fees 
is in place. 
 
On July 17, 2003, the Village entered into another interlocal agreement with Miami-Dade County.  
Under this agreement, the County remitted $676,817 to the Village for the fiscal year ending September 
30, 2020, for the purpose of providing transportation services within the Village.  This agreement shall 
remain in effect as long as the County receives net proceeds from the ½ cent County Transit System 
Surtax as authorized by Miami-Dade County Ordinance No. 02-116 pursuant to the authority of Section 
212.055(1), Florida Statutes 2002. 
 
E. Pension plans 
 
Defined contribution plans 
 
The Village of Pinecrest 401(a) Money Purchase Plan is a defined contribution plan established by the 
Village to provide benefits at retirement for its employees.  All full-time employees must be a member 
of the Plan.  Plan members are required to contribute 7% of base earnings for the Plan year. The Village 
is required to contribute 10% of base earnings for each participant for the Plan year.  Plan provisions and 
contribution requirements are established and may be amended by the Village Council. 
 
The Plan’s assets are administered by Voya Financial. The Village does not exercise any control over 
the Plan assets. Village contributions to the Plan were $688,327. Employee contributions were $363,779 
for the year ended September 30, 2020. 
 
The Village also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan. The Plan, available to all Village 
employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Participation in the Plan is 
optional. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, 
or unforeseeable emergency. Benefit provisions and contributions are established and may be amended 
by the Village Council. During the year ended September 30, 2020, the Village made no contributions 
and employees contributed $404,345.  Pursuant to the Statement No. 32 of the GASB, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, the Village 
does not have a fiduciary relationship with the Plan. Accordingly, the balances and transactions of the 
Village's Plan are not reported in the Village's financial statements. 
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan 
 
The Village participates in the Florida Retirement System (FRS), a statewide cost-sharing multiple-
employer public employee retirement system (PERS), available to governmental units within the state 
and administered by the State of Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.  
The sworn police personnel are eligible to participate in the FRS.   

 
General Information – As provided by Chapters 121 and 112, Florida Statutes, the FRS provides two 
cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit plans administered by the Florida Department of 
Management Services, Division of Retirement, including the FRS Pension Plan (“Pension Plan”) and the 
Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (“HIS Plan”).  The FRS provides retirement and disability benefits, 
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Benefits are 
established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 60S, Florida Administrative Code.  
Amendments to the law can be made only by an act of the Florida State Legislature.  The state of Florida 
annually issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the FRS.  The latest available report may be obtained by writing to the 
State of Florida Division of Retirement, Department of Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, 
Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000, by calling (877) 377-1737, or by visiting: 

www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications. 
 
FRS PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description: 
The Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, with a Deferred 
Retirement Option Program (“DROP”) for eligible employees. 
 
Benefits Provided: 
Benefits under the Pension Plan are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and 
service credit.  Special Risk Administrative Support class members who retire at or after age 55 with at 
least six years of credited service or 25 years of service regardless of age are entitled to a retirement 
benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their final average compensation based on the five 
highest years of salary, for each year of credited service. Special Risk class members (sworn law 
enforcement officers, firefighters, and correctional officers) who retire at or after age 55 with at least six 
years of credited service, or with 25 years of service regardless of age, are entitled to a retirement benefit 
payable monthly for life, equal to 3.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest 
years of salary for each year of credited service.  
 
For Special Risk and Special Risk Administrative Support class members enrolled on or after July 1, 
2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight years of credited service for all these members and 
increasing normal retirement to age 60 or 30 years of service regardless of age.  Also, the final average 
compensation for these members will be based on the eight highest years of salary. 
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan (continued) 
 
As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the Pension Plan 
before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost-of-living 
adjustment is 3% per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has service credit 
on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The annual cost-of- 
living adjustment is a proportion of 3% determined by dividing the sum of the pre-July 2011 service 
credit by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by 3%.  Plan members initially enrolled on or 
after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement. 
 
In addition to the above benefits, the DROP program allows eligible members to defer receipt of 
monthly retirement benefit payments while continuing employment with a FRS employer for a period 
not to exceed 60 months after electing to participate.  Deferred monthly benefits are held in the FRS 
Trust Fund and accrue interest. There are no required contributions by DROP participants. 
 
Contributions: 
Effective July 1, 2011, all enrolled members of the FRS, other than DROP participants, are required to 
contribute 3% of their salary to the FRS.  In addition to member contributions, governmental employers 
are required to make contributions to the FRS based on state-wide contribution rates established by the 
Florida Legislature. These rates are updated as of July 1 of each year.  The employer contribution rates 
by job class for the periods from October 1, 2019 through June 30, 2020, and from July 1, 2020 through 
September 30, 2020, respectively, were as follows: Regular Class – 8.47% and 10.00%; Senior 
Management – 25.41% and 27.29%; and DROP participants – 14.60% and 16.98%. These employer 
contribution rates do not include the 1.66% HIS Plan subsidy for the periods October 1, 2019 through 
June 30, 2020, and from July 1, 2020 through September 30, 2020, respectively. 
 
The Village’s contributions, including employee contributions, to the Pension Plan totaled $919,820 for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions:   
At September 30, 2020, the Village reported a liability of $11,998,695 for its proportionate share of the 
Pension Plan’s net pension liability.  The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July 1, 2019.  The Village’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the 
Village’s 2019-2020 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2019-2020 fiscal year contributions of all 
participating members.  At June 30, 2020, the Village’s proportion was 0.0277%, which was a decrease 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019, of 0.0278%.  
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan (continued) 
 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the Village recognized pension expense of $2,414,925. In 
addition, the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and 459,214$              -$                      
  actual experience
Change of assumptions 2,172,146             -                        
Net difference between projected and actual
  earnings on Pension Plan investments 714,414                -                        
Changes in proportion and differences
  between Village Pension Plan contributions
  and proportionate share of contributions 152,109                603,919              
Village Pension Plan contributions subsequent
  to the measurement date 240,847                -                        
      Total 3,738,730$            603,919$            

 
 

The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling $240,847 resulting from Village 
contributions to FRS subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Pension Plan will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30: Amount

2021 596,376$             
2022 928,820               
2023 789,494               
2024 471,963               
2025 107,311               

Thereafter -                           
 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumption, applied to all period included in the measurement: 
 
 Inflation:     2.40% 
 Salary increases:   3.25%, average, including inflation 
 Investment rate of return:  6.80%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan (continued) 
 
Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was not based on historical returns, 
but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy’s 
description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. 
Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an 
adjustment for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and 
geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 
 

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard

Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return Deviation

Cash 1.0% 2.2% 2.2% 1.2%
Fixed income 19.0% 3.0% 2.9% 3.5%
Global equity 54.2% 8.0% 6.7% 17.1%
Real estate 10.3% 6.4% 5.8% 11.7%
Private equity 11.1% 10.8% 8.1% 25.7%
Strategic investments 4.4% 5.5% 5.3% 6.9%
Total 100.0%

Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.4% 1.7%

(1) As outlined in the Pension Plan's investment policy  
 

Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.80%. The Pension Plan’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active 
and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculation the total pension liability is equal to 
the long-term expected rate of return. 
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan (continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the Village’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate: 
The following represents the Village’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 6.80%, as well as what the Village’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(5.80%) (6.80%) (7.80%)

Village's proportionate share of
  the net pension liability 16,554,924$  11,998,695$  3,748,701$     

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 
Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. 
 
Payables to the Pension Plan: 
At September 30, 2020, the Village reported a payable in the amount of $0 for outstanding contributions 
to the Pension Plan required for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. 
 
HIS PLAN 
 
Plan Description: 
The HIS Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established under Section 
112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida legislature at any time. The benefit is a 
monthly payment to assist retirees of state-administered retirement systems in paying their health 
insurance costs and is administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of 
Retirement. 
 
Benefits Provided: 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS 
payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement, with a minimum 
HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 per month. To be eligible to receive these 
benefits, a retiree under a state-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance 
coverage, which may include Medicare. 
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan (continued) 
 
Contributions: 
The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the Florida 
Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS members. 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the HIS contribution for the period October 1, 2018 
through September 30, 2020, was 1.66%. The Village contributed 100% of its statutorily required 
contributions for the current and preceding three years. HIS Plan contribution are deposited in a separate 
trust fund from which payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to 
annual legislative appropriation. In the event legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide 
full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled. 
 
The Village’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $66,781 for the current year. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions: 
At September 30, 2020, the Village reported a liability of $1,414,972 for its proportionate share of the 
HIS Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the 
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of July 1, 2019. The Village’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the 
Village’s 2019-2020 fiscal year contributions relative to the 2019-2020 fiscal year contributions of all 
participating members. At June 30, 2020, the Village's proportionate share was 0.0116%, which was an 
decrease from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2019, of 0.0120%. 
 
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the Village recognized pension expense of $110,871. In 
addition the Village reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred in flows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and 57,881$                1,092$               
  actual experience
Change of assumptions 152,150                82,275               
Net difference between projected and actual
  earnings on HIS Plan investments 1,130                    -                        
Changes in proportion and differences
  between Village HIS Plan contributions
  and proportionate share of contributions 49,652                  122,188              
Village HIS Plan contributions subsequent
  to the measurement date 18,268                  -                        
      Total 279,081$              205,555$            
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan (continued) 
 
The deferred outflows of resources related to the HIS Plan, totaling $18,268 resulting from Village 
contributions to the HIS Plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of 
the net pension liability in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the HIS Plan will be recognized in 
pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30: Amount

2021 15,293$               
2022 11,344                 
2023 3,100                   
2024 7,198                   
2025 9,801                   

Thereafter 8,522                    
 
Actuarial Assumptions: 
The total pension liability in the July 1, 2020, actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

Inflation:     2.40% 
Salary increases:   3.25%, average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return:  2.21%  

 
Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014. 
 
Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 2.21%. In general, the discount rate for 
calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term 
expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS 
benefit is essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, 
and the single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan 
sponsor. The Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the 
applicable municipal bond index. 
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Pension plans (continued) 

 
Defined benefit plan (continued) 
 
Sensitivity of the Village’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate: 
The following represents the Village’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 2.21%, as well as what the Village’s proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 
 

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

(1.21%) (2.21%) (3.21%)

Village's proportionate share of
  the net pension liability 1,527,291$    1,414,972$    1,180,141$     

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: 
Detailed information regarding the HIS Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 
 
Payables to the Pension Plan: 
At September 30, 2020, the Village reported a payable in the amount of $0 for outstanding contributions 
to the HIS Plan required for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020. 
 
Applicable totals for all of the Village’s defined benefit pension plans are reflected below:   
 

FRS HIS Total
Village's net pension liability 11,998,695$  1,414,972$    13,413,667$  
Deferred outflows of resources 3,738,730      279,081        4,017,811     
Deferred inflows of resources 603,919        205,555        809,474        
Pension expense/expenditure 2,414,925      110,871        2,525,796      
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NOTE 3  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) 
 
F.  Construction commitments and budget carryovers 
 
There are several ongoing projects and equipment purchases in the various funds of the Village at year-
end.  The outstanding commitments and budget carryovers are as follows:   
 

General Fund:
Radar Trailer, Police 15,900$           
Equipped Vehicles, Police 168,700           
Enotify, Police 5,500               
Compensation Study, HR 17,500             
Employee Appreciation, HR 10,000             
Outside Contractor, Finance 9,000               
Liquidated Damages Utilities, General Government 10,000             
Platform Analytics, VM 20,500             
Various Improvements, Parks   25,455             
Computer Hardware, Community Center 2,190               
Hibiscus Gallery Repair, Pinecrest Gardens 6,050               
  Total General Fund 290,795$         

Transportation Fund:
Monument Design 9,950$             

Capital Projects Fund:
Village Hall 26,867$           
Monument Sign 120,000           
Suniland Park Improvements 77,744             
Community Center 81,133             
Greer Park Improvements 281,625           
Coral Pine Park Improvements 82,240             
Flagler Grove Park Improvements 69,553             
Pinecrest Gardens, Improvements 1,598,983        
  Total Capital Projects Fund 2,338,145$      

 
 

G.  Subsequent Events 
 
The Village issued a 20 year $7,921,446 note from Sterling Bank with an interest rate of 2.22% for 
various capital improvement in February 2021. The Village has also entered into an agreement to 
purchase property to be used as an open space for recreational purrposes. 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 



Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Taxes

Ad valorem taxes 11,702,380$     11,702,380$     11,615,889$     (86,491)$       
Franchise fees 693,285            693,285            797,153            103,868         
Utility taxes 2,335,000         2,335,000         2,507,170         172,170         
Communications services tax 781,270            781,270            781,557            287                
Business tax 130,000            130,000            133,042            3,042             

Total taxes 15,641,935       15,641,935       15,834,811       192,876         

Licenses and permits 2,715,000         2,715,000         2,228,177         (486,823)       
Intergovernmental revenue 2,267,205         2,267,205         3,617,409         1,350,204      
Charges for services 2,674,940         2,674,940         1,919,255         (755,685)       
Fines and forfeitures 1,862,800         1,862,800         1,482,313         (380,487)       
Investment earnings 130,000            130,000            88,073              (41,927)         
Miscellaneous revenues 165,000            165,000            117,430            (47,570)         

Total revenues 25,456,880       25,456,880       25,287,468       (169,412)       

Expenditures
Current

General government
Village Council 193,980            193,980            153,114            40,866           
Village Manager 754,250            754,250            772,964            (18,714)         
Village Clerk 360,910            360,910            347,157            13,753           
Finance Department 381,350            390,350            370,665            19,685           
Village Attorney 505,000            505,000            399,335            105,665         
General government 1,550,600         1,639,570         1,554,588         84,982           
Information technology 443,745            446,870            442,449            4,421             

Total general government 4,189,835         4,290,930         4,040,272         250,658         

Public safety - police 9,937,420         10,354,650       9,400,704         953,946         
Emergency and disaster relief -                        383,149            383,149            -                    
Building, planning and zoning 2,366,440         2,408,603         2,408,787         (184)              
Public works 809,255            927,170            863,820            63,350           
Parks and recreation 5,398,275         5,550,805         4,927,621         623,184         

Total expenditures 22,701,225       23,915,307       22,024,353       1,890,954      

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 2,755,655         1,541,573         3,263,115         1,721,542      

(continued)

Budgeted Amounts

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

GENERAL FUND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL

The accompanying notes to the RSI are an integral part of this schedule.
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Other financing uses
Transfers out (2,437,850)$      (3,235,840)$      (3,213,978)$      21,862$         

Total other financing uses (2,437,850)        (3,235,840)        (3,213,978)        21,862           

Change in fund balance 317,805            (1,694,267)        49,137              1,743,404      

Fund balance, beginning of year 5,680,978         5,680,978         5,680,978         -                    

Fund balance, end of year 5,998,783$       3,986,711$       5,730,115$       1,743,404$    

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

The accompanying notes to the RSI are an integral part of this schedule.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRANSPORTATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Transportation taxes 466,360$          466,360$          433,557$          (32,803)$       
Investment earnings 10,000              10,000              12,148              2,148             
Miscellaneous revenues -                        -                        50,000              50,000           

Total revenues 476,360            476,360            495,705            19,345           

Expenditures
Current

Public works 1,474,130         1,474,130         1,108,631         365,499         
Total expenditures 1,474,130         1,474,130         1,108,631         365,499         

Deficiency of revenues under
expenditures (997,770)           (997,770)           (612,926)           384,844         

Other financing uses
Transfers out (25,990)             (25,990)             (25,990)             -                    

Total other financing uses (25,990)             (25,990)             (25,990)             -                    

Change in fund balance (1,023,760)        (1,023,760)        (638,916)           384,844         

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,083,605         1,083,605         1,083,605         -                    

Fund balance, end of year 59,845$            59,845$            444,689$          384,844$       

Budgeted Amounts

The accompanying notes to the RSI are an integral part of this schedule.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CITT PUBLIC TRANSIT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues 787,494$          787,494$          732,946$          (54,548)$       
Investment earnings 1,000                1,000                -                        (1,000)           
Miscellaneous revenues -                        -                        11,997              11,997           

Total revenues 788,494            788,494            744,943            (43,551)         

Expenditures
Current

Public works 953,680            953,680            813,789            139,891         
Total expenditures 953,680            953,680            813,789            139,891         

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (165,186)           (165,186)           (68,846)             96,340           

Other financing sources
Transfers in -                        27,000              27,000              -                    

Total other financing sources -                        27,000              27,000              -                    

Change in fund balance (165,186)           (138,186)           (41,846)             96,340           

Fund balance, beginning of year 174,677            174,677            174,677            -                    

Fund balance, end of year 9,491$              36,491$            132,831$          96,340$         

Budgeted Amounts

The accompanying notes to the RSI are an integral part of this schedule.
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NOTE 1  ̶  BUDGET AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
 
An annual appropriated budget is adopted for all of the governmental funds on a basis consistent with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.  
  
The Village follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements:  
 

a. The Village Manager submits to the Council a proposed operating and capital budget for the 
ensuing year.  The budget includes proposed expenditures and means of financing them.  

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.  
c. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a budget ordinance.  
d. The Village Council, by motion, may make supplemental appropriations for the year up to the 

amount of revenues in excess of those estimated.  There were supplemental appropriations in the 
General Fund for an additional $1,214,082 during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020.  

e. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control devise during the year for all 
of the funds.  

f. The Village Manager is authorized to transfer part of, all or an unencumbered appropriation 
within a department within a fund; however, any revisions that alter the total appropriations of 
any department or fund must be approved by the Village Council.  The Departments are General 
Government, Police, BPZ (Building, Planning and Zoning), Public Works, and Parks and 
Recreation. The classification detail at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations 
is at the department level.  

g. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Unencumbered amounts are re-
appropriated in the following year’s budget.  

h. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended.  Individual type amendments are not 
material in relation to the original appropriations.   

   
NOTE 2  ̶  RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETED AND ACTUAL RESULTS  
  
The GAAP to budgetary basis was the same for all funds.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE VILLAGE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - 

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN

Reporting Period Ending  9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2018 9/30/2017 9/30/2016 9/30/2015
Measurement Date  6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Village's proportion of the FRS net pension liability 0.027684% 0.027808% 0.031705% 0.032074% 0.031173% 0.027937%
Village's proportionate share of the FRS net
  pension liability 11,998,695$  9,576,699$  9,549,770$  9,487,370$  7,871,188$  3,608,378$  
Village's covered payroll 3,963,213$    4,011,802$  3,977,497$  4,132,168$  4,419,337$  3,727,429$  
Village's proportionate share of the FRS net pension

  liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 302.75% 238.71% 240.09% 229.60% 178.11% 96.81%
FRS Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
  FRS total pension liability 78.85% 82.61% 84.26% 83.89% 84.88% 92.00%

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2014
Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Village's proportion of the FRS net pension liability 0.028332%
Village's proportionate share of the FRS net
  pension liability 1,728,668$    
Village's covered payroll 3,648,836$    
Village's proportionate share of the FRS net pension

  liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 47.38%
FRS Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
  FRS total pension liability 96.09%

Note to the Schedule:
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

FLORIDA RETIREMENT SYSTEM PENSION PLAN

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2018 9/30/2017 9/30/2016 9/30/2015
Measurement Date 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Contractually required FRS contribution 919,820$    862,250$    903,573$    834,974$    834,553$    703,668$    
FRS Contributions in relation to the contractually
  required FRS contribution 919,820      862,250      903,573      834,974      834,553      703,668      

FRS Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

Covered payroll 3,920,088$  3,888,592$  3,863,023$  4,132,168$  4,419,337$  3,727,429$  
FRS Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 23.46% 22.17% 23.39% 20.21% 18.88% 18.88%

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2014
Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Contractually required FRS contribution 656,121$    
FRS Contributions in relation to the contractually
  required FRS contribution 656,121      

FRS Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                

Covered payroll 3,648,836$  
FRS Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 17.98%

Note to the Schedule:
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE VILLAGE'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY - 

HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2018 9/30/2017 9/30/2016 9/30/2015
Measurement Date 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Village's proportion of the HIS net pension liability 0.011589% 0.011957% 0.013136% 0.012697% 0.012216% 0.012164%
Village's proportionate share of the HIS net
  pension liability 1,414,972$    1,337,908$  1,390,295$  1,357,598$  1,423,708$  1,240,524$  
Village's covered payroll 3,963,213$    4,011,802$  3,977,497$  4,132,168$  4,419,337$  3,727,429$  
Village's proportionate share of the HIS net pension

  liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 35.70% 33.35% 34.95% 32.85% 32.22% 33.28%
HIS Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
  HIS total pension liability 3.00% 2.63% 2.15% 1.64% 0.97% 0.50%

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2014
Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Village's proportion of the HIS net pension liability 0.012125%
Village's proportionate share of the HIS net
  pension liability 1,133,680$    
Village's covered payroll 3,648,836$    
Village's proportionate share of the HIS net pension

  liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 31.07%
HIS Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
  HIS total pension liability 0.99%

Note to the Schedule:
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY PENSION PLAN

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2020 9/30/2019 9/30/2018 9/30/2017 9/30/2016 9/30/2015
Measurement Date 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2017 6/30/2016 6/30/2015

Contractually required HIS contribution 66,781$      66,398$      71,235$      67,195$      48,773$      43,532$      
HIS Contributions in relation to the contractually
  required HIS contribution 66,781        66,398        71,235        67,195        48,773        43,532        

HIS Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                -$                

Covered payroll 3,920,088$  3,888,592$  3,863,023$  4,132,168$  4,419,337$  3,727,429$  
HIS Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 1.70% 1.71% 1.84% 1.63% 1.10% 1.17%

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2014
Measurement Date 6/30/2014

Contractually required HIS contribution 37,882$      
HIS Contributions in relation to the contractually
  required HIS contribution 37,882        

HIS Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                

Covered payroll 3,648,836$  
HIS Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 1.04%

Note to the Schedule:
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
SCHEDULE OF THE VILLAGE'S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

Reporting Period Ending 9/30/2018 9/30/2019 9/30/2020
Measurement Date 9/30/2017 9/30/2018 9/30/2019

Service cost 24,009$       17,496$       25,752$       
Interest 6,051           8,400           8,898           
Changes of benefit terms -                   55,678         -                   
Differences between expected and actual experience -                   -                   (8,545)         
Changes of assumptions -                   (59,606)       64,444         
Benefit payments (7,548)         (10,268)       (14,644)       
  Net change in total OPEB liability 22,512         11,700         75,905         
Total OPEB liability - beginning 195,841       218,353       230,053       
Total OPEB liability - ending 218,353$     230,053$     305,958$     

Covered employee payroll (projected) 6,991,252$  7,885,136$  9,205,450$  

Village's total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered employee payroll 3.12% 2.92% 3.32%

Notes to the Schedule:
  Covered employee payroll was projected one year forward from the valuation date for the reporting period ending
     September 30, 2019.

  The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
 
Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure 
for particular purposes.  
 
Police Education Fund – This fund receives funds from judgements, donations and grants to be used to 
provide training to police department personnel. 
 
Police Forfeiture Fund – This fund is used to account for revenues received from federal, state and 
local law enforcement forfeitures and seizures which are restricted for law enforcement purposes.  
 
Hardwire Fund – This fund receives funds from a tax on land-based phone lines and is used to fund 
911 services.  
 
Wireless Fund – This fund receives funds derived from a tax on cell phones and is used to fund 911 
services.  
 
Prepaid 911 Fund – This fund receives funds collected by the state for the emergency telephone 
number 911 which are restricted for the purchase of systems, training, communications and related 
capital asset purchases.  
 
Impact Fees Fund – This fund receives impact fees charged against new development to provide for 
capital related costs made necessary by the new growth.  
 

Debt Service Fund 
 
The debt service fund is used to accumulate resources and distribute principal, interest and bond related 
issuance costs on long-term debt.  
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Special Revenue Funds Total
Police Police Prepaid Impact Debt Non-Major

Education Forfeiture Hardwire Wireless 911 Fees Service Governmental
 Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 19,793$   25,944$   2,605$    19,858$  9,340$    102,859$      278,366$       458,765$        
Accounts receivable, net 118          -              8,239      8,194      2,276      -                    -                    18,827            

Total assets 19,911$   25,944$   10,844$  28,052$  11,616$  102,859$      278,366$       477,592$        

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable -$             -$            -$            -$            -$            -$                  -$                  -$                    
Total liabilities -               -              -              -              -              -                    -                    -                      

Fund balances
Restricted for

Public safety 19,911     25,944     10,844    28,052    11,616    2,674            -                    99,041            
General government -               -              -              -              -              69,324          -                    69,324            
Parks -               -              -              -              -              30,861          -                    30,861            
Debt service -               -              -              -              -              -                    278,366         278,366          
Total fund balances 19,911     25,944     10,844     28,052    11,616    102,859        278,366         477,592          
Total liabilities and 

fund balances 19,911$   25,944$   10,844$  28,052$  11,616$  102,859$      278,366$       477,592$        
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Special Revenue Funds Total
Police Police Prepaid Impact Debt Non-Major

Education Forfeiture Hardwire Wireless 911 Fees Service Governmental
 Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues -$             -$            26,850$  24,059$  7,205$    -$                  -$                  58,114$          
Fines and forfeitures 8,946       1,978       -              -              -              -                    -                    10,924            
Impact fees -               -              -              -              -              92,630          -                    92,630            
Investment earnings 87            262          28           107         53           -                    -                    537                 

Total revenues 9,033       2,240       26,878    24,166    7,258      92,630          -                    162,205          

Expenditures
Current

Public safety 8,060       33,200     33,993    24,397    7,825      -                    -                    107,475          
Capital outlay -               -              -              -              -              33,818          -                    33,818            
Debt service

Principal retirement -               -              -              -              -              -                    1,148,500      1,148,500       
Interest -               -              -              -              -              -                    254,587         254,587          

Total expenditures 8,060       33,200     33,993    24,397    7,825      33,818          1,403,087      1,544,380       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 973          (30,960)   (7,115)     (231)        (567)        58,812          (1,403,087)    (1,382,175)      

Other financing sources
Transfers in -               -              -              -              -              -                    1,681,453      1,681,453       

Total other financing sources -               -              -              -              -              -                    1,681,453      1,681,453       

Change in fund balances 973          (30,960)   (7,115)     (231)        (567)        58,812          278,366         299,278          

Fund balances, beginning of year 18,938     56,904     17,959    28,283    12,183    44,047          -                    178,314          
Fund balances, end of year 19,911$   25,944$   10,844$  28,052$  11,616$  102,859$      278,366$       477,592$        
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures 3,180$           3,180$           8,946$           5,766$           
Investment earnings 20                 20                 87                 67                 

Total revenues 3,200             3,200             9,033             5,833             

Expenditures
Public safety 10,980           10,980           8,060             2,920             

Total expenditures 10,980           10,980           8,060             2,920             

Change in fund balance (7,780)           (7,780)           973                8,753             

Fund balance, beginning of year 18,938           18,938           18,938           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 11,158$         11,158$         19,911$         8,753$           

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE EDUCATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Fines and forfeitures 20,000$         20,000$         1,978$           (18,022)$       
Investment earnings 50                 50                 262                212                

Total revenues 20,050           20,050           2,240             (17,810)         

Expenditures
Current

Public safety 45,000           45,000           33,200           11,800           
Total expenditures 45,000           45,000           33,200           11,800           

Change in fund balance (24,950)         (24,950)         (30,960)         (29,610)         

Fund balance, beginning of year 56,904           56,904           56,904           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 31,954$         31,954$         25,944$         (29,610)$       

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE FORFEITURE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues 28,200$         28,200$         26,850$         (1,350)$         
Investment earnings -                    -                    28                 28                 

Total revenues 28,200           28,200           26,878           (1,322)           

Expenditures
Current

Public safety 41,285           41,285           33,993           7,292             
Total expenditures 41,285           41,285           33,993           7,292             

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (13,085)         (13,085)         (7,115)           5,970             

Other financing sources
Transfers in 11,500           11,500           -                    (11,500)         

Total other financing sources 11,500           11,500           -                    (11,500)         

Change in fund balance (1,585)           (1,585)           (7,115)           (5,530)           

Fund balance, beginning of year 17,959           17,959           17,959           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 16,374$         16,374$         10,844$         (5,530)$         

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HARDWIRE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues 20,160$         20,160$         24,059$         3,899$           
Investment earnings 50                 50                 107                57                 

Total revenues 20,210           20,210           24,166           3,956             

Expenditures
Current

Public safety 29,510           29,510           24,397           5,113             
Total expenditures 29,510           29,510           24,397           5,113             

Change in fund balance (9,300)           (9,300)           (231)              9,069             

Fund balance, beginning of year 28,283           28,283           28,283           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 18,983$         18,983$         28,052$         9,069$           

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WIRELESS FUND
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues 6,420$           6,420$           7,205$           785$              
Investment earnings -                    -                    53                 53                 

Total revenues 6,420             6,420             7,258             838                

Expenditures
Current

Public safety 9,420             9,420             7,825             1,595             
Total expenditures 9,420             9,420             7,825             1,595             

Change in fund balance (3,000)           (3,000)           (567)              2,433             

Fund balance, beginning of year 12,183           12,183           12,183           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 9,183$           9,183$           11,616$         2,433$           

PREPAID 911 FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Impact fees 55,000$         55,000$         92,630$         37,630$         

Total revenues 55,000           55,000           92,630           37,630           

Expenditures
Capital outlay 55,000           55,000           33,818           21,182           

Total expenditures 55,000           55,000           33,818           21,182           

Change in fund balance -                    -                    58,812           58,812           

Fund balance, beginning of year 44,047           44,047           44,047           -                    

Fund balance, end of year 44,047$         44,047$         102,859$       58,812$         

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
IMPACT FEES FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Expenditures
Principal 1,396,500$    1,396,500$    1,148,500$    248,000$       
Interest 295,315         295,315         254,587         40,728           

Total expenditures 1,691,815      1,691,815      1,403,087      288,728         

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (1,691,815)    (1,691,815)    (1,403,087)    288,728         

Other financing sources
Transfers in 1,691,815      1,691,815      1,681,453      (10,362)         

Total other financing sources 1,691,815      1,691,815      1,681,453      (10,362)         

Change in fund balance -                    -                    278,366         278,366         

Fund balance, beginning of year -                    -                    -                    -                    

Fund balance, end of year -$                  -$                  278,366$       278,366$       

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL
DEBT SERVICE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
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Variance with 
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenues 465,000$       465,000$       24,534$         (440,466)$     
Investment earnings -                    -                    14,482           14,482           

Total revenues 465,000         465,000         39,016           (425,984)       

Expenditures
Current

Parks and recreation 100,000         332,000         180,703         151,297         
Capital outlay 1,180,555      4,401,901      2,986,039      1,415,862      

Total expenditures 1,280,555      4,733,901      3,166,742      1,567,159      

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (815,555)       (4,268,901)    (3,127,726)    1,141,175      

Other financing sources
Transfers in 760,525         1,531,515      1,531,515      -                    

Total other financing sources 760,525         1,531,515      1,531,515      -                    

Change in fund balance (55,030)         (2,737,386)    (1,596,211)    1,141,175      

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,952,202      2,952,202      2,952,202      -                    

Fund balance, end of year 2,897,172$    214,816$       1,355,991$    1,141,175$    

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES–BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Budgeted Amounts

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA
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Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial report for the relevant year.   

STATISTICAL SECTION 
(Unaudited) 

 
This section of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, 
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the Village’s overall financial 
health. 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Financial Trends                             Page 
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Village’s financial 
performance and well-being have changes over time. 
 

 Table 1 – Net Position by Component           71 
 Table 2 – Changes in Net Position          72-73 
 Table 3 – Governmental Activities Tax Revenue by Source         74 
 Table 4 – Fund Balances, Governmental Funds  75 
 Table 5 – Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds        76-77 
 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Village’s most significant local 
revenue source, the property tax. 
 

 Table 6 – General Governmental Revenues by Function   78 
 Table 7 – Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property  79 
 Table 8 – Property Tax Rates – Direct and Overlapping Governments  80 
 Table 9 – Property Tax Levies and Collections 81 
 Table 10 – Principal Property Taxpayers 82 
 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules present information help the reader assess the affordability of the Village’s current 
levels of outstanding debt and the Village’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 
 

 Table 11 – Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type 83 
 Table 12 – Ratio of General Bonded Debt Outstanding  84 
 Table 13 –Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt  85 
 

Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which the Village’s financial activities take place.  
 

 Table 14 – Demographic and Economic Statistics  86 
 Table 15 – Principal Employers  87 
 

Operating Information 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 
information in the Village’s financial report relates to the services the Village provides and the 
activities it performs.  
 

 Table 16 – Full-Time Equivalent Government Employees by Function/Program             88 
 Table 17 – Operating Indicators by Function/Program  89-91 
 Table 18 – Capital Assets by Function/Program 92



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

N
E

T
 P

O
S

IT
IO

N
 B

Y
 C

O
M

P
O

N
E

N
T

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S
(A

C
C

R
U

A
L

 B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
)

(T
ab

le
 1

) 
(A

m
ou

n
ts

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 t
h

ou
sa

n
d

s)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ca
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

s
97

,3
86

$ 
  

92
,2

21
$ 

  
88

,3
73

$ 
  

84
,4

61
$ 

  
82

,7
57

$ 
  

80
,8

88
$ 

  
78

,1
57

$ 
   

77
,0

87
$ 

  
77

,6
63

$ 
  

74
,0

69
$ 

  
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
4,

66
8

   
   

 
5,

36
5

   
   

 
6,

50
5

   
   

 
6,

73
9

   
   

 
5,

59
7

   
   

5,
78

7
   

   
4,

89
2

   
   

  
3,

76
7

   
   

4,
01

4
   

   
 

1,
05

5
   

   
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d

7,
04

9
   

   
 

7,
92

1
   

   
 

7,
42

5
   

   
 

7,
69

6
   

   
 

1,
93

3
   

   
24

4
   

   
   

(2
93

)
   

   
   

 
(2

,8
67

)
   

  
(4

,1
46

)
   

  
(3

,7
70

)
   

  
T

ot
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

  n
et

 p
os

it
io

n
10

9,
10

3
$ 

10
5,

50
7

$ 
10

2,
30

3
$ 

98
,8

96
$ 

  
90

,2
87

$ 
  

86
,9

19
$ 

  
82

,7
56

$ 
   

77
,9

87
$ 

  
77

,5
31

$ 
  

71
,3

54
$ 

  

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ca
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

s
4,

53
4

$ 
   

 
4,

78
3

$ 
   

 
5,

45
6

$ 
   

 
6,

14
0

$ 
   

 
5,

84
2

$ 
   

 
6,

33
5

$ 
   

 
6,

78
2

$ 
   

  
7,

26
6

$ 
   

 
7,

73
4

$ 
   

 
7,

79
5

$ 
   

 
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d

2,
42

2
   

   
 

2,
05

8
   

   
 

1,
31

7
   

   
 

41
0

   
   

   
 

54
3

   
   

   
35

5
   

   
   

60
3

   
   

   
  

86
7

   
   

   
1,

16
5

   
   

 
1,

86
4

   
   

T
ot

al
 b

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

  n
et

 p
os

it
io

n
6,

95
6

$ 
   

 
6,

84
1

$ 
   

 
6,

77
3

$ 
   

 
6,

55
0

$ 
   

 
6,

38
5

$ 
   

 
6,

69
0

$ 
   

 
7,

38
5

$ 
   

  
8,

13
3

$ 
   

 
8,

89
9

$ 
   

 
9,

65
9

$ 
   

 

P
ri

m
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t
N

et
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ca
pi

ta
l a

ss
et

s
10

1,
92

0
$ 

97
,0

04
$ 

  
93

,8
29

$ 
  

90
,6

01
$ 

  
88

,5
99

$ 
  

87
,2

23
$ 

  
84

,9
39

$ 
   

84
,3

53
$ 

  
85

,3
97

$ 
  

81
,8

64
$ 

  
R

es
tr

ic
te

d
4,

66
8

   
   

 
5,

36
5

   
   

 
6,

50
5

   
   

 
6,

73
9

   
   

 
5,

59
7

   
   

5,
78

7
   

   
4,

89
2

   
   

  
3,

76
7

   
   

4,
01

4
   

   
 

1,
05

5
   

   
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d

9,
47

1
   

   
 

9,
97

9
   

   
 

8,
74

2
   

   
 

8,
10

6
   

   
 

2,
47

6
   

   
59

9
   

   
   

31
0

   
   

   
  

(2
,0

00
)

   
  

(2
,9

81
)

   
  

(1
,9

06
)

   
  

T
ot

al
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t

  n
et

 p
os

it
io

n
11

6,
05

9
$ 

11
2,

34
8

$ 
10

9,
07

6
$ 

10
5,

44
6

$ 
96

,6
72

$ 
  

93
,6

09
$ 

  
90

,1
41

$ 
   

86
,1

20
$ 

  
86

,4
30

$ 
  

81
,0

13
$ 

  

71



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I

N
 N

E
T

 P
O

S
IT

IO
N

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S
(A

C
C

R
U

A
L

 B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
)

(T
ab

le
 2

) 
(A

m
ou

n
ts

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 t
h

ou
sa

n
d

s) F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
E

xp
en

se
s

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s:

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

3,
41

5
$ 

   
   

3,
36

3
$ 

   
   

3,
85

7
$ 

   
   

3,
73

6
$ 

   
   

3,
59

3
$ 

   
   

3,
65

9
$ 

   
   

3,
75

5
$ 

   
   

3,
77

9
$ 

   
   

3,
98

3
$ 

   
   

4,
37

1
$ 

   
   

P
ub

li
c 

sa
fe

ty
7,

55
9

   
   

   
7,

20
3

   
   

   
7,

25
9

   
   

   
7,

36
1

   
   

   
7,

31
0

   
   

   
9,

09
0

   
   

   
10

,3
06

   
   

 
12

,3
81

   
   

 
10

,5
97

   
   

 
11

,3
11

   
   

 
B

ui
ld

in
g,

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
zo

ni
ng

1,
49

9
   

   
   

1,
55

2
   

   
   

1,
60

4
   

   
   

1,
72

8
   

   
   

1,
91

8
   

   
   

2,
01

9
   

   
   

2,
04

0
   

   
   

2,
02

6
   

   
   

2,
24

0
   

   
   

2,
43

0
   

   
   

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
4,

14
4

   
   

   
4,

26
3

   
   

   
4,

65
2

   
   

   
4,

70
5

   
   

   
4,

95
0

   
   

   
5,

01
5

   
   

   
6,

14
7

   
   

   
6,

35
5

   
   

   
6,

62
0

   
   

   
6,

92
0

   
   

   
P

ub
li

c 
w

or
ks

5,
56

1
   

   
   

5,
65

8
   

   
   

5,
88

9
   

   
   

6,
15

7
   

   
   

5,
91

9
   

   
   

6,
09

9
   

   
   

5,
30

0
   

   
   

5,
44

5
   

   
   

5,
65

6
   

   
   

6,
10

2
   

   
   

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

lo
ng

-t
er

m
 d

eb
t

52
1

   
   

   
   

68
0

   
   

   
   

28
1

   
   

   
   

37
7

   
   

   
   

41
9

   
   

   
   

39
6

   
   

   
   

39
7

   
   

   
   

27
7

   
   

   
   

34
1

   
   

   
   

25
0

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
ex

pe
ns

es
22

,6
99

   
   

 
22

,7
19

   
   

 
23

,5
42

   
   

 
24

,0
64

   
   

 
24

,1
09

   
   

 
26

,2
78

   
   

 
27

,9
45

   
   

 
30

,2
63

   
   

 
29

,4
37

   
   

 
31

,3
84

   
   

 
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s:

S
to

rm
w

at
er

 u
ti

li
ty

38
0

   
   

   
   

56
6

   
   

   
   

58
7

   
   

   
   

76
1

   
   

   
   

84
1

   
   

   
   

66
6

   
   

   
   

56
6

   
   

   
   

72
9

   
   

   
   

60
3

   
   

   
   

45
6

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 b

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

ex
pe

ns
es

38
0

   
   

   
   

56
6

   
   

   
   

58
7

   
   

   
   

76
1

   
   

   
   

84
1

   
   

   
   

66
6

   
   

   
   

56
6

   
   

   
   

72
9

   
   

   
   

60
3

   
   

   
   

45
6

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t e

xp
en

se
s

23
,0

79
$ 

   
 

23
,2

85
$ 

   
 

24
,1

29
$ 

   
 

24
,8

25
$ 

   
 

24
,9

50
$ 

   
 

26
,9

44
$ 

   
 

28
,5

11
$ 

   
 

30
,9

92
$ 

   
 

30
,0

40
$ 

   
 

31
,8

40
$ 

   
 

P
ro

gr
am

 R
ev

en
u

es
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s:
C

ha
rg

es
 f

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s:

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

11
4

$ 
   

   
   

18
5

$ 
   

   
   

24
6

$ 
   

   
   

61
6

$ 
   

   
   

12
2

$ 
   

   
   

14
2

$ 
   

   
   

18
6

$ 
   

   
   

28
7

$ 
   

   
   

35
9

$ 
   

   
   

20
9

$ 
   

   
   

P
ub

li
c 

sa
fe

ty
46

0
   

   
   

   
42

6
   

   
   

   
37

5
   

   
   

   
35

0
   

   
   

   
44

4
   

   
   

   
66

2
   

   
   

   
3,

94
6

   
   

   
3,

82
2

   
   

   
4,

97
4

   
   

   
3,

84
0

   
   

   
B

ui
ld

in
g,

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
zo

ni
ng

1,
77

9
   

   
   

1,
96

4
   

   
   

2,
17

2
   

   
   

2,
24

5
   

   
   

2,
85

4
   

   
   

2,
96

0
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

P
ar

ks
 a

nd
 r

ec
re

at
io

n
1,

18
1

   
   

   
1,

34
4

   
   

   
1,

49
2

   
   

   
1,

66
9

   
   

   
1,

70
7

   
   

   
1,

88
6

   
   

   
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
P

ub
li

c 
w

or
ks

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

   
   

   
   

  
11

1
   

   
   

   
13

1
   

   
   

   
26

1
   

   
   

   
28

6
   

   
   

   
1,

70
0

   
   

   
1,

89
5

   
   

   
2,

42
0

   
   

   
1,

64
2

   
   

   
O

pe
ra

ti
ng

 g
ra

nt
s 

an
d 

co
nt

ri
bu

ti
on

s
87

   
   

   
   

  
82

   
   

   
   

  
71

   
   

   
   

  
19

6
   

   
   

   
27

9
   

   
   

   
27

4
   

   
   

   
62

0
   

   
   

   
63

6
   

   
   

   
2,

48
7

   
   

   
63

4
   

   
   

   
C

ap
it

al
 g

ra
nt

s 
an

d 
co

nt
ri

bu
ti

on
s

1,
04

7
   

   
   

18
9

   
   

   
   

1,
29

3
   

   
   

60
3

   
   

   
   

69
0

   
   

   
   

77
4

   
   

   
   

93
4

   
   

   
   

30
6

   
   

   
   

46
5

   
   

   
   

54
3

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s 
pr

og
ra

m
 r

ev
en

ue
s

4,
66

8
   

   
   

4,
26

7
   

   
   

5,
76

0
   

   
   

5,
81

0
   

   
   

6,
35

7
   

   
   

6,
98

4
   

   
   

7,
39

4
   

   
   

6,
95

4
   

   
   

10
,7

13
   

   
 

6,
87

6
   

   
   

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
C

ha
rg

es
 f

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s:

S
to

rm
w

at
er

 u
ti

li
ty

47
3

   
   

   
   

44
5

   
   

   
   

51
4

   
   

   
   

53
8

   
   

   
   

67
6

   
   

   
   

96
9

   
   

   
   

1,
25

7
   

   
   

1,
32

0
   

   
   

1,
33

3
   

   
   

1,
20

2
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 b

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

pr
og

ra
m

 r
ev

en
ue

s
47

3
   

   
   

   
44

5
   

   
   

   
51

4
   

   
   

   
53

8
   

   
   

   
67

6
   

   
   

   
96

9
   

   
   

   
1,

25
7

   
   

   
1,

47
0

   
   

   
1,

33
3

   
   

   
1,

20
2

   
   

   
T

ot
al

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t p
ro

gr
am

 r
ev

en
ue

s
5,

14
1

$ 
   

   
4,

71
2

$ 
   

   
6,

27
4

$ 
   

   
6,

34
8

$ 
   

   
7,

03
3

$ 
   

   
7,

95
3

$ 
   

   
8,

65
1

$ 
   

   
8,

42
4

$ 
   

   
12

,0
46

$ 
   

 
8,

07
8

$ 
   

   

72



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I

N
 N

E
T

 P
O

S
IT

IO
N

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S
(A

C
C

R
U

A
L

 B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
)

(T
ab

le
 2

)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20

N
et

 (
ex

pe
ns

e)
/r

ev
en

ue
G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
(1

8,
03

1)
$ 

   
(1

8,
45

2)
$ 

   
(1

7,
78

2)
$ 

   
(1

8,
25

4)
$ 

   
(1

7,
75

2)
$ 

   
(1

9,
29

4)
$ 

   
(2

0,
55

1)
$ 

   
(2

3,
30

9)
$ 

   
(1

8,
72

4)
$ 

   
(2

4,
50

8)
$ 

   
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

93
   

   
   

   
  

(1
21

)
   

   
   

  
(7

3)
   

   
   

   
 

(2
23

)
   

   
   

  
(1

65
)

   
   

   
  

30
3

   
   

   
   

69
1

   
   

   
   

74
1

   
   

   
   

73
0

   
   

   
   

74
6

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 p

ri
m

ar
y 

go
ve

rn
m

en
t n

et
 e

xp
en

se
(1

7,
93

8)
$ 

   
(1

8,
57

3)
$ 

   
(1

7,
85

5)
$ 

   
(1

8,
47

7)
$ 

   
(1

7,
91

7)
$ 

   
(1

8,
99

1)
$ 

   
(1

9,
86

0)
$ 

   
(2

2,
56

8)
$ 

   
(1

7,
99

4)
$ 

   
(2

3,
76

2)
$ 

   

G
en

er
al

 R
ev

en
u

es
 a

n
d

 O
th

er
 C

h
an

ge
s

In
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s:

T
ax

es A
d 

va
lo

re
m

 ta
xe

s
6,

99
2

$ 
   

   
7,

41
0

$ 
   

   
7,

44
1

$ 
   

   
7,

81
8

$ 
   

   
8,

59
8

$ 
   

   
9,

03
7

$ 
   

   
9,

62
9

$ 
   

   
10

,2
31

$ 
   

 
11

,0
34

$ 
   

 
11

,6
16

$ 
   

 
F

ra
nc

hi
se

 f
ee

s 
on

 g
ro

ss
 r

ec
ei

pt
s

1,
07

4
   

   
   

1,
21

7
   

   
   

1,
16

6
   

   
   

89
4

   
   

   
   

91
4

   
   

   
   

94
5

   
   

   
   

77
2

   
   

   
   

97
8

   
   

   
   

90
4

   
   

   
   

79
7

   
   

   
   

U
ti

li
ty

 ta
xe

s
1,

93
7

   
   

   
1,

98
2

   
   

   
2,

06
7

   
   

   
2,

22
7

   
   

   
2,

19
3

   
   

   
2,

22
7

   
   

   
2,

34
2

   
   

   
2,

35
1

   
   

   
2,

41
4

   
   

   
2,

50
7

   
   

   
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ta
x

1,
14

7
   

   
   

1,
10

8
   

   
   

1,
08

4
   

   
   

1,
01

9
   

   
   

97
7

   
   

   
   

88
5

   
   

   
   

77
6

   
   

   
   

86
9

   
   

   
   

81
7

   
   

   
   

78
2

   
   

   
   

T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

ta
x

98
3

   
   

   
   

95
6

   
   

   
   

51
8

   
   

   
   

47
1

   
   

   
   

48
1

   
   

   
   

48
1

   
   

   
   

49
4

   
   

   
   

48
4

   
   

   
   

48
4

   
   

   
   

43
3

   
   

   
   

B
us

in
es

s 
ta

x
12

2
   

   
   

   
12

7
   

   
   

   
11

4
   

   
   

   
11

6
   

   
   

   
11

4
   

   
   

   
12

3
   

   
   

   
13

1
   

   
   

   
12

6
   

   
   

   
13

3
   

   
   

   
13

3
   

   
   

   
In

te
rg

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l, 

no
t r

es
tr

ic
te

d 
to

 s
pe

ci
fi

c 
pr

og
ra

m
s

1,
75

5
   

   
   

1,
62

3
   

   
   

1,
74

3
   

   
   

1,
84

7
   

   
   

1,
87

6
   

   
   

1,
91

4
   

   
   

1,
93

3
   

   
   

1,
98

7
   

   
   

2,
01

9
   

   
   

1,
76

9
   

   
   

In
co

m
e 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
61

   
   

   
   

  
80

   
   

   
   

  
49

   
   

   
   

  
12

   
   

   
   

  
56

   
   

   
   

  
96

   
   

   
   

  
15

4
   

   
   

   
14

3
   

   
   

   
26

5
   

   
   

   
11

5
   

   
   

   
M

is
ce

ll
an

eo
us

43
7

   
   

   
   

35
3

   
   

   
   

39
8

   
   

   
   

44
2

   
   

   
   

14
9

   
   

   
   

21
8

   
   

   
   

15
9

   
   

   
   

77
9

   
   

   
   

19
8

   
   

   
   

17
9

   
   

   
   

T
ot

al
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
14

,5
08

   
   

 
14

,8
56

   
   

 
14

,5
80

   
   

 
14

,8
46

   
   

 
15

,3
58

   
   

 
15

,9
26

   
   

 
16

,3
90

   
   

 
17

,9
48

   
   

 
18

,2
68

   
   

 
18

,3
31

   
   

 
B

us
in

es
s-

ty
pe

 a
ct

iv
it

ie
s:

In
co

m
e 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

   
   

   
   

  
14

   
   

   
   

  
T

ot
al

 b
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

   
   

   
   

  
14

   
   

   
   

  
T

ot
al

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t
14

,5
14

   
   

 
14

,8
62

   
   

 
14

,5
84

   
   

 
14

,8
47

   
   

 
15

,3
59

   
   

 
15

,9
28

   
   

 
16

,3
93

   
   

 
17

,9
55

   
   

 
18

,3
04

   
   

 
18

,3
45

   
   

 

C
h

an
ge

 in
 N

et
 P

os
it

io
n

G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l a
ct

iv
it

ie
s

(3
,5

23
)

$ 
   

  
(3

,5
96

)
$ 

   
  

(3
,2

02
)

$ 
   

  
(3

,4
08

)
$ 

   
  

(2
,3

94
)

$ 
   

  
(3

,3
68

)
$ 

   
  

(4
,1

61
)

$ 
   

  
(5

,3
61

)
$ 

   
  

(4
56

)
$ 

   
   

  
(6

,1
77

)
$ 

   
  

B
us

in
es

s-
ty

pe
 a

ct
iv

it
ie

s
99

   
   

   
   

  
(1

15
)

   
   

   
  

(6
9)

   
   

   
   

 
(2

22
)

   
   

   
  

(1
64

)
   

   
   

  
30

5
   

   
   

   
69

4
   

   
   

   
74

8
   

   
   

   
76

6
   

   
   

   
76

0
   

   
   

   
T

ot
al

 p
ri

m
ar

y 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t
(3

,4
24

)
$ 

   
  

(3
,7

11
)

$ 
   

  
(3

,2
71

)
$ 

   
  

(3
,6

30
)

$ 
   

  
(2

,5
58

)
$ 

   
  

(3
,0

63
)

$ 
   

  
(3

,4
67

)
$ 

   
  

(4
,6

13
)

$ 
   

  
31

0
$ 

   
   

   
(5

,4
17

)
$ 

   
  

73



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 A
C

T
IV

IT
IE

S
 T

A
X

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 B

Y
 S

O
U

R
C

E
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

(A
C

C
R

U
A

L
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

)
(T

ab
le

 3
) 

(A
m

ou
n

ts
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 t

h
ou

sa
n

d
s)

F
ra

n
ch

is
e

F
is

ca
l

A
d

 V
al

or
em

F
ee

s 
on

 
U

ti
li

ty
C

om
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s
T

ra
n

sp
or

ta
ti

on
B

u
si

n
es

s
Y

ea
r

T
ax

S
er

vi
ce

s
T

ax
S

er
vi

ce
s 

T
ax

T
ax

T
ax

T
ot

al

20
11

6,
99

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
1,

07
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

1,
93

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
1,

14
7

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
98

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

,2
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
20

12
7,

41
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
21

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
98

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
10

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

95
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,8

00
   

   
   

   
   

20
13

7,
44

1
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

16
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

06
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

08
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

06
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

,9
35

   
   

   
   

   
20

14
7,

81
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

89
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
22

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
01

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

47
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
6

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
,5

45
   

   
   

   
   

20
15

8,
59

8
   

   
   

   
   

  
91

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

19
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
97

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

,2
77

   
   

   
   

   
20

16
9,

03
7

   
   

   
   

   
  

94
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
22

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

88
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,6

98
   

   
   

   
   

20
17

9,
62

9
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

34
2

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
49

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
14

,1
44

   
   

   
   

   
20

18
10

,2
31

   
   

   
   

   
97

8
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

35
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
86

9
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
12

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
39

   
   

   
   

   
20

19
11

,0
34

   
   

   
   

   
90

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

41
4

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
81

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
48

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,7
86

   
   

   
   

   
20

20
11

,6
16

   
   

   
   

   
79

7
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

50
7

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
78

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
43

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

3
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

,2
68

   
   

   
   

   

74



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

F
U

N
D

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S

, G
O

V
E

R
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 F
U

N
D

S
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

(M
O

D
IF

IE
D

 A
C

C
R

U
A

L
 B

A
S

IS
 O

F
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

IN
G

)
(T

ab
le

 4
) 

(A
m

ou
n

ts
 e

xp
re

ss
ed

 in
 t

h
ou

sa
n

d
s)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d

N
on

sp
en

da
bl

e
1

$ 
   

   
   

  
 

14
7

$ 
   

   
  

16
0

$ 
   

   
  

18
2

$ 
   

   
  

10
7

$ 
   

   
  

10
8

$ 
   

   
  

14
5

$ 
   

   
  

55
$ 

   
   

   
 

53
$ 

   
   

   
 

23
$ 

   
   

   
 

C
om

m
it

te
d

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

37
8

   
   

   
  

45
3

   
   

   
  

55
6

   
   

   
  

29
   

   
   

   
 

A
ss

ig
ne

d
80

   
   

   
   

 
19

8
   

   
   

  
14

1
   

   
   

  
55

6
   

   
   

  
1,

35
8

   
   

  
1,

13
1

   
   

  
47

3
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

9
   

   
   

  
U

na
ss

ig
ne

d
6,

87
5

   
   

  
7,

85
1

   
   

  
7,

79
1

   
   

  
7,

42
0

   
   

  
6,

40
4

   
   

  
6,

22
2

   
   

  
3,

96
8

   
   

  
3,

24
8

   
   

  
5,

07
2

   
   

  
5,

06
9

   
   

  
T

ot
al

 G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
6,

95
6

$ 
   

   
8,

19
6

$ 
   

   
8,

09
2

$ 
   

   
8,

15
8

$ 
   

   
7,

86
9

$ 
   

   
7,

46
1

$ 
   

   
4,

96
4

$ 
   

   
3,

75
6

$ 
   

   
5,

68
1

$ 
   

   
5,

73
0

$ 
   

   

A
ll

 O
th

er
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l F

un
ds

R
es

tr
ic

te
d,

 r
ep

or
te

d 
in

:
S

pe
ci

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 F

un
ds

4,
66

8
$ 

   
   

5,
36

5
$ 

   
   

6,
50

5
$ 

   
   

6,
73

9
$ 

   
   

5,
59

7
$ 

   
   

4,
77

1
$ 

   
   

4,
89

2
$ 

   
   

3,
76

7
$ 

   
   

1,
43

7
$ 

   
   

77
7

$ 
   

   
  

D
eb

t S
er

vi
ce

 F
un

ds
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
8

   
   

   
  

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 F
un

ds
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

80
3

   
   

  
4,

92
8

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

57
7

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

A
ss

ig
ne

d,
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
:

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s 
F

un
ds

1,
75

8
   

   
  

1,
07

8
   

   
  

63
4

   
   

   
  

50
2

   
   

   
  

80
7

   
   

   
  

1,
01

6
   

   
  

2,
68

7
   

   
  

36
8

   
   

   
  

37
5

   
   

   
  

1,
35

6
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 a

ll
 o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l f
un

ds
6,

42
6

$ 
   

   
6,

44
3

$ 
   

   
7,

13
9

$ 
   

   
7,

24
1

$ 
   

   
12

,2
07

$ 
   

 
10

,7
15

$ 
   

 
7,

57
9

$ 
   

   
4,

13
5

$ 
   

   
4,

38
9

$ 
   

   
2,

41
1

$ 
   

   

F
un

d 
ba

la
nc

es
 a

ll
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l f

un
ds

13
,3

82
$ 

   
 

14
,6

39
$ 

   
 

15
,2

31
$ 

   
 

15
,3

99
$ 

   
 

20
,0

76
$ 

   
 

18
,1

76
$ 

   
 

12
,5

43
$ 

   
 

7,
89

1
$ 

   
   

10
,0

70
$ 

   
 

8,
14

1
$ 

   
   

75



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I

N
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
, G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
S

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S
(M

O
D

IF
IE

D
 A

C
C

R
U

A
L

 B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
)

(T
ab

le
 5

) 
(A

m
ou

n
ts

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 t
h

ou
sa

n
d

s)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
R

ev
en

u
es

T
ax

es
12

,2
55

$ 
  

12
,8

00
$ 

  
12

,3
89

$ 
  

12
,5

45
$ 

  
13

,2
77

$ 
  

13
,6

98
$ 

  
14

,1
44

$ 
  

15
,0

39
$ 

  
15

,7
86

$ 
  

16
,2

69
$ 

  
L

ic
en

se
s 

an
d 

pe
rm

it
s

1,
77

9
   

   
1,

75
1

   
   

2,
14

3
   

   
2,

41
5

   
   

2,
76

7
   

   
2,

81
6

   
   

2,
64

4
   

   
 

2,
56

1
   

   
 

3,
20

0
   

   
 

2,
22

8
   

   
 

In
te

rg
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l r
ev

en
ue

s
2,

89
0

   
   

1,
89

3
   

   
3,

10
8

   
   

2,
64

6
   

   
2,

84
5

   
   

2,
96

2
   

   
3,

53
5

   
   

 
2,

98
2

   
   

 
3,

22
3

   
   

 
4,

43
3

   
   

 
C

ha
rg

es
 f

or
 s

er
vi

ce
s

1,
55

5
   

   
1,

67
1

   
   

1,
86

8
   

   
2,

02
0

   
   

2,
06

5
   

   
2,

26
7

   
   

1,
98

1
   

   
 

2,
25

2
   

   
 

2,
83

4
   

   
 

1,
91

9
   

   
 

F
in

es
 a

nd
 f

or
fe

it
ur

es
19

9
   

   
   

57
5

   
   

   
38

4
   

   
   

57
6

   
   

   
55

5
   

   
   

85
3

   
   

   
1,

16
8

   
   

 
1,

14
6

   
   

 
1,

67
2

   
   

 
1,

49
3

   
   

 
Im

pa
ct

 f
ee

s
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
44

   
   

   
  

 
93

   
   

   
  

 
In

ve
st

m
en

t e
ar

ni
ng

s
61

   
   

   
  

79
   

   
   

  
49

   
   

   
  

12
   

   
   

  
57

   
   

   
  

96
   

   
   

  
15

4
   

   
   

 
14

3
   

   
   

 
26

5
   

   
   

 
11

5
   

   
   

 
M

is
ce

ll
an

eo
us

 r
ev

en
ue

s
46

0
   

   
   

35
3

   
   

   
39

8
   

   
   

44
3

   
   

   
14

9
   

   
   

21
8

   
   

   
16

0
   

   
   

 
77

9
   

   
   

 
19

8
   

   
   

 
17

9
   

   
   

 
T

ot
al

 r
ev

en
ue

s
19

,1
99

   
  

19
,1

22
   

  
20

,3
39

   
  

20
,6

57
   

  
21

,7
15

   
  

22
,9

10
   

  
23

,7
86

   
  

24
,9

02
   

  
27

,2
22

   
  

26
,7

29
   

  

E
xp

en
d

it
u

re
s

C
ur

re
nt

G
en

er
al

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t

3,
27

7
   

   
2,

70
9

   
   

3,
44

0
   

   
4,

00
3

   
   

3,
56

0
   

   
3,

51
0

   
   

3,
57

2
   

   
 

3,
54

9
   

   
 

3,
83

7
   

   
 

4,
04

0
   

   
 

P
ub

li
c 

sa
fe

ty
7,

28
0

   
   

6,
99

4
   

   
7,

28
7

   
   

7,
38

4
   

   
7,

99
4

   
   

8,
79

2
   

   
9,

28
7

   
   

 
8,

90
1

   
   

 
9,

35
8

   
   

 
9,

50
8

   
   

 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
di

sa
st

er
 r

el
ie

f
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
42

5
   

   
   

 
2,

85
6

   
   

 
29

0
   

   
   

 
38

3
   

   
   

 
B

ui
ld

in
g,

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
zo

ni
ng

1,
50

1
   

   
1,

57
3

   
   

1,
65

6
   

   
1,

69
5

   
   

1,
90

5
   

   
1,

98
7

   
   

2,
03

0
   

   
 

2,
04

4
   

   
 

2,
23

7
   

   
 

2,
40

9
   

   
 

P
ub

li
c 

w
or

ks
4,

30
8

   
   

3,
89

5
   

   
4,

61
5

   
   

4,
35

2
   

   
4,

52
3

   
   

5,
76

9
   

   
1,

91
6

   
   

 
3,

15
3

   
   

 
4,

54
8

   
   

 
2,

78
6

   
   

 
P

ar
ks

 a
nd

 r
ec

re
at

io
n

1,
55

9
   

   
1,

08
5

   
   

1,
23

0
   

   
1,

56
0

   
   

3,
03

9
   

   
2,

78
7

   
   

4,
54

3
   

   
 

4,
70

3
   

   
 

4,
91

5
   

   
 

5,
10

8
   

   
 

C
ap

it
al

 o
ut

la
y

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

4,
49

7
   

   
 

2,
97

3
   

   
 

85
9

   
   

   
 

3,
02

0
   

   
 

D
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

P
ri

nc
ip

al
1,

03
0

   
   

1,
02

0
   

   
1,

12
5

   
   

1,
16

4
   

   
1,

54
5

   
   

1,
58

0
   

   
2,

75
8

   
   

 
1,

10
7

   
   

 
1,

28
3

   
   

 
1,

14
9

   
   

 
In

te
re

st
53

1
   

   
   

59
0

   
   

   
39

4
   

   
   

33
1

   
   

   
37

1
   

   
   

38
7

   
   

   
38

9
   

   
   

 
26

9
   

   
   

 
29

3
   

   
   

 
25

5
   

   
   

 
Is

su
an

ce
 c

os
ts

11
3

   
   

   
32

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

48
   

   
   

  
39

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

40
   

   
   

  
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

19
,5

99
   

  
17

,8
98

   
  

19
,7

47
   

  
20

,5
37

   
  

22
,9

76
   

  
24

,8
12

   
  

29
,4

17
   

  
29

,5
55

   
  

27
,6

60
   

  
28

,6
58

   
  

E
xc

es
s 

(d
ef

ic
ie

nc
y)

 o
f 

re
ve

nu
es

  o
ve

r 
(u

nd
er

) 
ex

pe
nd

it
ur

es
(4

00
)

   
   

  
1,

22
4

   
   

59
2

   
   

   
12

0
   

   
   

(1
,2

61
)

   
  

(1
,9

02
)

   
  

(5
,6

31
)

   
  

(4
,6

53
)

   
  

(4
38

)
   

   
  

(1
,9

29
)

   
  

76



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I

N
 F

U
N

D
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S
, G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 F

U
N

D
S

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S
(M

O
D

IF
IE

D
 A

C
C

R
U

A
L

 B
A

S
IS

 O
F

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
IN

G
)

(T
ab

le
 5

) 
(A

m
ou

n
ts

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 in

 t
h

ou
sa

n
d

s)

F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
20

20
O

th
er

 F
in

an
ci

n
g 

S
ou

rc
es

 (
u

se
s)

B
on

d 
pr

oc
ee

ds
5,

82
5

   
   

4,
86

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
2,

08
5

   
   

5,
93

9
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
2,

61
7

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
B

on
d 

di
sc

ou
nt

(5
2)

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

P
ay

m
en

t t
o 

es
cr

ow
 a

ge
nt

(4
,2

20
)

   
  

(4
,8

28
)

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

(2
,0

37
)

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 in

1,
52

8
   

   
2,

06
9

   
   

1,
79

0
   

   
1,

71
9

   
   

3,
43

4
   

   
2,

88
3

   
   

3,
84

4
   

   
 

2,
02

6
   

   
 

2,
40

0
   

   
 

3,
24

0
   

   
 

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 o

ut
(1

,5
28

)
   

  
(2

,0
69

)
   

  
(1

,7
90

)
   

  
(1

,7
19

)
   

  
(3

,4
34

)
   

  
(2

,8
83

)
   

  
(3

,8
44

)
   

  
(2

,0
26

)
   

  
(2

,4
00

)
   

  
(3

,2
40

)
   

  
T

ot
al

 o
th

er
 f

in
an

ci
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

1,
55

3
   

   
32

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

48
   

   
   

  
5,

93
9

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

2,
61

7
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 f

un
d 

ba
la

nc
es

1,
15

3
$ 

   
 

1,
25

6
$ 

   
 

59
2

$ 
   

   
16

8
$ 

   
   

4,
67

8
$ 

   
 

(1
,9

02
)

$ 
  

(5
,6

31
)

$ 
   

(4
,6

53
)

$ 
   

2,
17

9
$ 

   
 

(1
,9

29
)

$ 
   

D
eb

t s
er

vi
ce

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f

  n
on

ca
pi

ta
l e

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

8.
68

%
9.

31
%

8.
19

%
7.

53
%

9.
45

%
9.

19
%

13
.1

9%
5.

64
%

6.
99

%
5.

83
%

77



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

S
 B

Y
 F

U
N

C
T

IO
N

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S

(T
ab

le
 6

)

L
ic

en
se

s
F

is
ca

l
an

d
C

h
ar

ge
s 

fo
r

F
in

es
 a

n
d

Im
p

ac
t

Y
ea

r
T

ax
es

P
er

m
it

s
In

te
rg

ov
er

n
m

en
ta

l
S

er
vi

ce
s

F
or

fe
it

u
re

s
F

ee
s

In
te

re
st

M
is

ce
ll

an
eo

u
s

T
ot

al

20
11

12
,2

55
,2

38
$ 

   
  

1,
77

9,
18

7
$ 

   
   

  
2,

88
9,

70
1

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
55

4,
99

0
$ 

   
   

  
19

9,
24

2
$ 

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

 
61

,0
48

$ 
   

   
45

9,
55

0
$ 

   
   

  
 

19
,1

98
,9

56
$ 

   
  

20
12

12
,8

00
,3

36
   

   
 

1,
75

0,
72

0
   

   
   

  
1,

89
3,

39
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
67

0,
78

9
   

   
   

  
57

4,
77

4
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
79

,5
18

   
   

   
35

2,
69

9
   

   
   

  
 

19
,1

22
,2

33
   

   
 

20
13

12
,3

89
,5

93
   

   
 

2,
14

3,
54

4
   

   
   

  
3,

10
7,

72
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
86

8,
16

8
   

   
   

  
38

3,
79

9
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
48

,7
62

   
   

   
39

7,
87

4
   

   
   

  
 

20
,3

39
,4

65
   

   
 

20
14

12
,5

44
,8

02
   

   
 

2,
41

4,
98

9
   

   
   

  
2,

64
5,

83
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
02

0,
36

1
   

   
   

  
57

6,
03

8
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
11

,8
31

   
   

   
44

2,
42

9
   

   
   

  
 

20
,6

56
,2

82
   

   
 

20
15

13
,2

76
,9

63
   

   
 

2,
76

6,
53

4
   

   
   

  
2,

84
5,

41
9

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
06

5,
12

1
   

   
   

  
55

5,
66

0
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
56

,5
58

   
   

   
14

9,
22

9
   

   
   

  
 

21
,7

15
,4

84
   

   
 

20
16

13
,6

98
,3

51
   

   
 

2,
81

5,
70

3
   

   
   

  
2,

96
2,

39
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
26

7,
04

8
   

   
   

  
85

3,
09

8
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
95

,5
91

   
   

   
21

8,
17

1
   

   
   

  
 

22
,9

10
,3

59
   

   
 

20
17

14
,1

43
,8

86
   

   
 

2,
64

4,
08

5
   

   
   

  
3,

53
4,

88
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
98

0,
51

8
   

   
   

  
1,

16
8,

02
5

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
15

4,
29

3
   

   
 

15
9,

33
0

   
   

   
  

 
23

,7
85

,0
19

   
   

 
20

18
15

,0
38

,5
25

   
   

 
2,

56
0,

55
8

   
   

   
  

2,
98

1,
99

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

25
1,

68
5

   
   

   
  

1,
14

6,
49

6
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
 

14
3,

46
4

   
   

 
77

8,
69

2
   

   
   

  
 

24
,9

01
,4

18
   

   
 

20
19

15
,7

86
,0

14
   

   
 

3,
20

0,
33

4
   

   
   

  
3,

22
2,

52
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
83

4,
01

3
   

   
   

  
1,

67
1,

86
6

   
   

   
  

44
,0

47
 

26
4,

99
4

   
   

 
19

8,
43

9
   

   
   

  
 

27
,2

22
,2

27
   

   
 

20
20

16
,2

68
,3

68
   

   
 

2,
22

8,
17

7
   

   
   

  
4,

43
3,

00
3

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
91

9,
25

5
   

   
   

  
1,

49
3,

23
7

   
   

   
  

92
,6

30
 

11
5,

24
0

   
   

 
17

9,
42

7
   

   
   

  
 

26
,7

29
,3

37
   

   
 

S
ou

rc
e:

A
ll

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l f
un

ds
 f

or
 f

is
ca

l y
ea

rs
.

N
ot

es
:

T
hi

s 
sc

he
du

le
 is

 p
re

pa
re

d 
on

 a
 G

A
A

P
 b

as
is

.  
T

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

po
rt

ed
 is

 f
ro

m
 th

e 
C

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 A
nn

ua
l F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ts

. 78



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

A
S

S
E

S
S

E
D

 A
N

D
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

D
 A

C
T

U
A

L
 V

A
L

U
E

 O
F

 T
A

X
A

B
L

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 F
IS

C
A

L
 Y

E
A

R
S

(U
N

A
U

D
IT

E
D

)
(T

ab
le

 7
)

A
ss

es
se

d
R

ea
l

P
er

so
n

al
T

ot
al

 T
ax

ab
le

V
al

u
e 

as
 a

 
P

ro
p

er
ty

P
ro

p
er

ty
A

ss
es

se
d

T
ot

al
E

st
im

at
ed

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

F
is

ca
l

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

P
ro

p
er

ty
D

ir
ec

t
A

ct
u

al
of

 A
ct

u
al

Y
ea

r
V

al
u

e
V

al
u

e
V

al
u

e
T

ax
 R

at
e

T
ax

ab
le

 V
al

u
e

V
al

u
e

20
11

3,
68

2,
57

5,
48

4
$ 

   
  

39
,4

24
,1

19
$ 

   
   

  
3,

72
1,

99
9,

60
3

$ 
   

  
2.

10
0

3,
91

7,
89

4,
31

9
$ 

   
  

95
.0

0%
20

12
3,

51
0,

20
7,

22
6

   
   

  
41

,2
37

,8
88

   
   

   
  

3,
55

1,
44

5,
11

4
   

   
  

2.
10

4
3,

73
8,

36
3,

27
8

   
   

  
95

.0
0%

20
13

3,
60

1,
05

9,
19

3
   

   
  

38
,9

03
,9

07
   

   
   

  
3,

63
9,

96
3,

10
0

   
   

  
2.

20
0

3,
83

1,
54

0,
10

5
   

   
  

95
.0

0%
20

14
3,

69
2,

06
2,

02
5

   
   

  
45

,0
43

,5
68

   
   

   
  

3,
73

7,
10

5,
59

3
   

   
  

2.
20

0
3,

93
3,

79
5,

36
1

   
   

  
95

.0
0%

20
15

3,
86

7,
70

2,
78

8
   

   
  

45
,8

42
,5

24
   

   
   

  
3,

91
3,

54
5,

31
2

   
   

  
2.

30
0

4,
11

9,
52

1,
38

1
   

   
  

95
.0

0%
20

16
4,

33
6,

41
3,

37
1

   
   

  
44

,4
57

,4
78

   
   

   
  

4,
38

0,
87

0,
84

9
   

   
  

2.
30

0
4,

61
1,

44
2,

99
9

   
   

  
95

.0
0%

20
17

4,
55

0,
03

1,
86

3
   

   
  

45
,2

95
,9

95
   

   
   

  
4,

59
5,

32
7,

85
8

   
   

  
2.

30
0

4,
83

7,
18

7,
21

9
   

   
  

95
.0

0%
20

18
4,

76
0,

53
3,

99
2

   
   

  
49

,9
51

,5
03

   
   

   
  

4,
81

0,
48

5,
49

5
   

   
  

2.
39

9
5,

06
3,

66
8,

94
2

   
   

  
95

.0
0%

20
19

4,
97

3,
55

3,
69

0
   

   
  

51
,5

13
,4

71
   

   
   

  
5,

02
5,

06
7,

16
1

   
   

  
2.

39
9

5,
28

9,
54

4,
38

0
   

   
  

95
.0

0%
20

20
5,

09
9,

11
6,

37
9

   
   

  
55

,4
81

,1
34

   
   

   
  

5,
15

4,
59

7,
51

3
   

   
  

2.
39

9
5,

42
5,

89
2,

11
9

   
   

  
95

.0
0%

S
ou

rc
e:

   
D

at
a 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
M

ia
m

i-
D

ad
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
pp

ra
is

er
's

 O
ff

ic
e.

 

79



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 T
A

X
 R

A
T

E
S

 -
 D

IR
E

C
T

 A
N

D
 O

V
E

R
L

A
P

P
IN

G
 G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
S

L
A

S
T

 T
E

N
 F

IS
C

A
L

 Y
E

A
R

S
(r

at
e 

p
er

 $
1,

00
0 

of
 a

ss
es

se
d

 v
al

u
e)

 
(T

ab
le

 8
)

V
il

la
ge

S
ch

oo
l

S
ta

te
C

ou
n

ty
S

p
ec

ia
l D

is
tr

ic
ts

S
ou

th
 F

lo
ri

d
a

F
lo

ri
d

a
T

ot
al

D
ir

ec
t

W
at

er
In

la
n

d
D

ir
ec

t 
an

d
F

is
ca

l
O

p
er

at
in

g
O

p
er

at
in

g
D

eb
t

E
ve

rg
la

d
es

M
an

ag
em

en
t

O
k

ee
ch

ob
ee

N
av

ig
at

io
n

O
p

er
at

in
g

D
eb

t
C

h
il

d
re

n
's

F
ir

e
F

ir
e

O
ve

rl
ap

p
in

g
Y

ea
r

M
il

la
ge

M
il

la
ge

S
er

vi
ce

P
ro

je
ct

D
is

tr
ic

t
B

as
in

D
is

tr
ic

t
M

il
la

ge
S

er
vi

ce
T

ru
st

R
es

cu
e

D
eb

t
L

ib
ra

ry
R

at
es

20
11

2.
10

40
   

 
7.

69
80

   
  

0.
29

70
   

  
0.

08
90

   
   

0.
53

50
   

   
   

  
0.

03
45

   
   

  
4.

83
79

   
   

1.
28

50
   

0.
50

00
   

  
2.

18
50

 
0.

04
20

 
0.

38
20

 
19

.9
89

4
   

   
   

20
12

2.
10

40
   

 
7.

86
40

   
  

0.
38

50
   

  
0.

08
94

   
   

0.
53

46
   

   
   

  
0.

03
45

   
   

  
5.

42
75

   
   

0.
44

50
   

0.
50

00
   

  
2.

57
50

 
0.

02
00

 
0.

28
40

 
20

.2
63

0
   

   
   

20
13

2.
20

00
   

 
7.

76
50

   
  

0.
24

00
   

  
0.

06
24

   
   

0.
37

39
   

   
   

  
0.

03
45

   
   

  
4.

80
55

   
   

0.
28

50
   

0.
50

00
   

  
2.

44
96

 
0.

01
30

 
0.

17
95

 
18

.9
08

4
   

   
   

20
14

2.
20

00
   

 
7.

76
50

   
  

0.
23

30
   

  
0.

06
13

   
   

0.
36

76
   

   
   

  
0.

03
45

   
   

  
4.

70
35

   
   

0.
28

50
   

0.
50

00
   

  
2.

44
96

 
0.

01
30

 
0.

17
25

 
18

.7
85

0
   

   
   

20
15

2.
30

00
   

 
7.

77
50

   
  

0.
19

90
   

  
0.

05
48

   
   

0.
15

77
   

   
   

  
0.

17
17

   
   

  
0.

03
45

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

0.
45

00
   

0.
50

00
   

  
2.

42
07

 
0.

01
14

 
0.

28
40

 
19

.0
25

7
   

   
   

20
16

2.
30

00
   

 
7.

13
80

   
  

0.
18

40
   

  
0.

04
71

   
   

0.
13

59
   

   
   

  
0.

14
77

   
   

  
0.

03
20

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

0.
40

00
   

0.
50

00
   

  
2.

42
07

 
0.

00
75

 
0.

28
40

 
18

.2
63

8
   

   
   

20
17

2.
30

00
   

 
6.

77
40

   
  

0.
22

00
   

  
0.

04
41

   
   

0.
12

75
   

   
   

  
0.

13
84

   
   

  
0.

03
20

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

0.
40

00
   

0.
46

70
   

  
2.

42
07

 
0.

00
75

 
0.

28
40

 
17

.8
82

1
   

   
   

20
18

2.
39

90
   

 
6.

50
40

   
  

0.
22

90
   

  
0.

04
17

   
   

0.
12

09
   

   
   

  
0.

13
10

   
   

  
0.

03
20

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

0.
46

40
   

0.
44

20
   

  
2.

42
07

 
-

   
   

   
  

0.
28

40
 

17
.7

35
2

   
   

   
20

19
2.

39
90

   
 

7.
02

50
   

  
0.

12
30

   
  

0.
03

97
   

   
0.

11
52

   
   

   
  

0.
12

46
   

   
  

0.
03

20
   

   
  

4.
66

69
   

   
0.

47
80

   
0.

46
80

   
  

2.
42

07
 

-
   

   
   

  
0.

28
40

 
18

.1
76

1
   

   
   

20
20

2.
35

00
   

 
6.

93
60

   
  

0.
19

30
   

  
0.

03
80

   
   

0.
11

03
   

   
   

  
0.

11
92

   
   

  
0.

03
20

   
   

  
4.

66
69

   
   

0.
47

80
   

0.
45

07
   

  
2.

42
07

 
-

   
   

   
  

0.
28

40
 

18
.0

78
8

   
   

   

S
ou

rc
e:

  D
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

M
ia

m
i-

D
ad

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
A

pp
ra

is
er

's
 O

ff
ic

e.

80



V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 T
A

X
 L

E
V

IE
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

IO
N

S
L

A
S

T
 T

E
N

 Y
E

A
R

S

C
ol

le
ct

io
n

 in
F

is
ca

l 
T

ax
es

A
m

ou
n

t
P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
S

u
b

se
q

u
en

t
P

er
ce

n
ta

ge
 

Y
ea

r
L

ev
ie

d
 (1

)
C

ol
le

ct
ed

 (2
)

of
 L

ev
y

Y
ea

rs
 (3

)
C

ol
le

ct
ed

 (2
)

of
 L

ev
y

20
11

7,
70

2,
97

4
$ 

   
   

 
6,

90
9,

71
1

$ 
   

   
 

89
.7

%
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

90
9,

71
1

$ 
   

   
 

89
.7

%
20

12
7,

81
3,

17
9

   
   

   
 

7,
41

0,
47

5
   

   
   

 
94

.8
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
41

0,
47

5
   

   
   

 
94

.8
%

20
13

8,
00

7,
91

9
   

   
   

 
7,

44
0,

74
2

   
   

   
 

92
.9

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

44
0,

74
2

   
   

   
 

92
.9

%
20

14
8,

01
7,

27
4

   
   

   
 

7,
81

7,
49

4
   

   
   

 
97

.5
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

7,
81

7,
49

4
   

   
   

 
97

.5
%

20
15

9,
00

1,
15

4
   

   
   

 
8,

59
7,

76
2

   
   

   
 

95
.5

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

59
7,

76
2

   
   

   
 

95
.5

%
20

16
9,

46
8,

93
7

   
   

   
 

9,
03

6,
61

5
   

   
   

 
95

.4
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
03

6,
61

5
   

   
   

 
95

.4
%

20
17

10
,0

76
,0

03
   

   
  

9,
62

8,
69

1
   

   
   

 
95

.6
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9,
62

8,
69

1
   

   
   

 
95

.6
%

20
18

10
,5

69
,2

54
   

   
  

10
,2

30
,5

54
   

   
  

96
.8

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,2
30

,5
54

   
   

  
96

.8
%

20
19

11
,5

40
,3

55
   

   
  

11
,1

01
,2

82
   

   
  

96
.2

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,1
01

,2
82

   
   

  
96

.2
%

20
20

12
,0

55
,1

36
   

   
  

11
,6

15
,8

89
   

   
  

96
.4

%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

,6
15

,8
89

   
   

  
96

.4
%

N
ot

es
:

(1
)

D
at

a 
is

 ta
ke

n 
fr

om
 F

or
m

 D
R

 4
20

 o
r 

D
R

 4
20

M
M

 s
ub

m
it

te
d 

to
 th

e 
M

ia
m

i-
D

ad
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

A
pp

ra
is

er
's

 O
ff

ic
e 

an
d 

th
e 

S
ta

te
 o

f 
F

lo
ri

da
. 

(2
)

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

V
il

la
ge

 o
f 

P
in

ec
re

st
. 

(3
)

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 n

ot
 a

va
il

ab
le

. 

(T
ab

le
 9

)

Y
ea

r 
of

 t
h

e 
L

ev
y

T
ot

al
 C

ol
le

ct
io

n
s 

to
 D

at
e

81



20
20

20
11

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f

P
er

ce
n

ta
ge

 o
f

T
ax

ab
le

T
ot

al
 T

ax
ab

le
T

ax
ab

le
T

ot
al

 T
ax

ab
le

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

A
ss

es
se

d
A

ss
es

se
d

T
ax

p
ay

er
T

yp
e 

of
 U

se
V

al
u

at
io

n
R

an
k

V
al

u
e

V
al

u
at

io
n

R
an

k
V

al
u

e

S
pe

ct
or

 &
 S

on
s

S
ho

pp
in

g 
C

en
te

r
46

,0
90

,7
91

$ 
   

1
0.

83
%

28
,8

79
,0

00
   

   
 

1
0.

82
%

D
P

F
 S

un
il

an
d 

L
L

C
S

ho
pp

in
g 

C
en

te
r

37
,1

36
,7

58
   

   
2

0.
67

%
G

at
or

 D
ad

el
an

d 
P

ar
tn

er
s,

 L
T

D
S

ho
pp

in
g 

C
en

te
r

25
,2

02
,8

13
   

   
3

0.
45

%
17

,4
16

,4
85

   
   

 
3

0.
50

%
C

of
e 

S
ho

pp
in

g 
C

en
te

r
S

ho
pp

in
g 

C
en

te
r

25
,1

23
,6

33
   

   
4

0.
45

%
F

lo
ri

da
 P

ow
er

U
ti

li
ty

24
,8

07
,1

82
   

   
5

0.
45

%
12

,5
06

,1
70

   
   

 
6

0.
36

%
K

en
da

ll
 I

m
po

rt
s 

L
L

C
S

ho
pp

in
g 

C
en

te
r

21
,5

19
,5

32
   

   
6

0.
39

%
16

,1
00

,0
00

   
   

 
4

0.
46

%
P

in
ec

re
st

 P
la

za
S

ho
pp

in
g 

C
en

te
r

20
,4

68
,0

35
   

   
7

0.
37

%
K

en
da

ll
 P

la
za

, L
T

D
S

ho
pp

in
g 

C
en

te
r

20
,4

60
,0

00
   

   
8

0.
37

%
18

,4
00

,0
00

   
   

 
2

0.
52

%
P

ub
li

x
S

up
er

m
ar

ke
t

17
,8

02
,3

42
   

   
9

0.
32

%
G

 F
 B

 E
nt

er
pr

is
es

A
ut

om
ot

iv
e

17
,3

70
,9

55
   

   
10

0.
31

%
13

,0
00

,0
00

   
   

 
5

0.
37

%
P

in
ec

re
st

 R
ea

lt
y 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
s

S
ho

pp
in

g 
C

en
te

r
11

,9
00

,0
00

   
   

 
7

0.
34

%
S

un
il

an
d 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
es

S
ho

pp
in

g 
C

en
te

r
10

,4
00

,0
00

   
   

 
8

0.
30

%
K

en
da

ll
 H

ou
se

 A
pa

rt
m

en
ts

A
pa

rt
m

en
ts

9,
76

0,
00

0
   

   
   

9
0.

28
%

B
ur

di
ne

s
S

ho
pp

in
g 

C
en

te
r

9,
60

0,
00

0
   

   
   

10
0.

27
%

   
  T

ot
al

25
5,

98
2,

04
1

$ 
 

4.
61

%
14

7,
96

1,
65

5
$ 

  
4.

21
%

S
ou

rc
es

:  
M

ia
m

i-
D

ad
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

T
ax

 A
ss

es
so

r's
 O

ff
ic

e 
20

20
 T

ax
 R

ol
l (

R
ea

l/
P

er
so

na
l P

ro
pe

rt
y 

ta
xa

bl
e 

va
lu

e 
- 

$5
,5

55
,1

44
,8

22
).

M
ia

m
i-

D
ad

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
T

ax
 A

ss
es

so
r's

 O
ff

ic
e 

20
11

 T
ax

 R
ol

l (
R

ea
l/

P
er

so
na

l P
ro

pe
rt

y 
ta

xa
bl

e 
va

lu
e 

- 
$3

,5
17

,3
39

,9
39

).

A
ll

 d
at

a 
is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

M
ia

m
i-

D
ad

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
A

pp
ra

is
or

's
 O

ff
ic

e.
 

V
IL

L
A

G
E

 O
F

 P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

, F
L

O
R

ID
A

P
R

IN
C

IP
A

L
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 T

A
X

P
A

Y
E

R
S

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 Y

E
A

R
 A

N
D

 N
IN

E
 Y

E
A

R
S

 A
G

O
(T

ab
le

 1
0)

82



Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
General Total Percentage Debt

Fiscal Obligation Outstanding   Primary Per Capita of Personal Per

Year Bonds(1)(3)
Bonds Government Population(2) Income(4)

  Income Capita

2011 13,075$          -$                    13,075$       18,255           57,702$    1.25% 716$  
2012 12,140            -                      12,140         18,477           72,069      1.14% 657    
2013 11,015            -                      11,015         18,496           72,069      1.04% 596    
2014 9,947              -                      9,947           18,403           72,069      0.86% 541    
2015 14,341            -                      14,341         18,408           72,069      1.20% 779    
2016 12,761            -                      12,761         18,382           72,069      0.99% 694    
2017 10,003            -                      10,003         18,467           72,069      0.75% 542    
2018 8,897              -                      8,897           18,490           72,069      0.67% 481    
2019 10,231            -                      10,231         18,510           72,069      0.77% 553    
2020 9,082              -                      9,082           18,619           77,459      0.63% 488    

Notes: Details regarding the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
(1) Amount is in thousands.
(2)

(3) The Village of Pinecrest Finance Department is the source for this data.
(4)

For fiscal year 2010, U.S. Census.  Other years used the U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Servey, 5 
year estimates. 

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Table 11)

Fiscal year 2010 U.S. Census and other years for the population as estimated by the Bureau of Economic and
Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year. 
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Assessed Ratio of
General Value of Bonded Debt Debt

Fiscal Obligation Taxable to Assessed Per

Year Bonds(1)(3) Property(1)(4)
Value Population(2)

Capita

2011 13,075$           3,722,000$      0.35% 18,255             716$        
2012 12,140             3,551,445        0.34% 18,447             658          
2013 11,015             3,639,963        0.30% 18,496             596          
2014 9,947               3,737,106        0.27% 18,403             541          
2015 14,341             3,913,545        0.37% 18,408             779          
2016 12,761             4,380,871        0.29% 18,382             694          
2017 10,003             4,595,328        0.22% 18,467             542          
2018 8,897               4,810,485        0.18% 18,490             481          
2019 10,231             5,025,067        0.20% 18,510             553          
2020 9,082               5,154,598        0.18% 18,619             488          

Notes: Details regarding the Village's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements
(1) Amount is in thousands.
(2)

(3) The Village of Pinecrest Finance Department is the source for this data.
(4) Data is provided by the Miami-Dade County's Property Appraiser.

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

RATIO OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(Table 12)

Fiscal year 2010 U.S. Census and other years for the population as estimated by the Bureau of
Economic and Business Research, University of Florida as of April 1 each year. 
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VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

(Table 13)

Bonded Percentage Amount Amount Per
Debt Applicable to Applicable to Capita

Governmental Unit Outstanding Pinecrest(1) Pinecrest Pinecrest

Direct
  Village of Pinecrest 9,082,000$          100.00% 9,082,000$      488$            

Overlapping

  School Board(2) 969,024,000        0.67% 6,523,641        350$            

  County(3) 2,282,020,000     0.67% 15,362,962      825              

3,251,044,000$   21,886,603$    1,175$         

Total direct and overlapping debt 30,968,603$    

Notes:
(1) Based upon population; Village of Pinecrest and Miami-Dade County.
(2) Amounts provided by School Board are as of June 30th.
(3) Amounts provided by the Miami-Dade County Finance Department. 
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(Table 14)

Median Household School Unemployment

Year Population(1) Houshold Income(2) Units(2) Enrollment(3)      Rate(4)

2011 18,255            108,403$                   6,572        5,843             10.3%
2012 18,447            110,530                     6,610        5,591             8.5%
2013 18,496            112,659                     6,468        5,473             8.5%
2014 18,403            122,235                     6,614        5,388             6.1%
2015 18,408            128,966                     6,574        5,300             5.6%
2016 18,382            130,900                     6,575        5,221             5.1%
2017 18,467            152,643                     6,492        5,274             2.4%
2018 18,490            152,643                     6,492        5,396             3.2%
2019 18,510            152,643                     6,492        5,395             3.0%
2020 18,619            156,875                     6,541        5,324             3.0%

Sources:
(1)

Fiscal year 2010 U.S. Census.

(2)
U.S. Census Bureau.

(3)
The Miami-Dade School System is the source of this data.

(4)
The Department of Labor is the source of this data. 

VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Other years are estimated by the Bureau of Economic and Business Research, University of
Florida as of April 1, each year. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL  
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of  
    the Village Council, 
Village of Pinecrest, Florida 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the “Village”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2020, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated February 24, 2021.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Village’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a 
timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those 
charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Village’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Village’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and 
compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
 
 
Bradenton, Florida 
February 24, 2021 



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 
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SECTION I 
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

 
Financial Statements 
Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial  
  statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified 
 
Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses identified?              yes            X    no 
 
Significant deficiencies identified not considered 
  to be material weaknesses?               yes            X    no 
 
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?          yes            X    no 
   
Federal Programs and State Financial Assistance Projects 
There was not an audit of major federal award programs or state award programs as of September 30, 
2020, due to the total amount expended being less than $750,000. 
 

SECTION II 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

 
None noted.  
 

SECTION III 
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

 
Not applicable. 

  
SECTION IV 

STATE PROJECTS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
Not applicable.  
 



VILLAGE OF PINECREST, FLORIDA 
 
 

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 
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STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 
 
None noted. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S MANAGEMENT LETTER 
 

 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the Village 
    Council and Village Manager, 
Village of Pinecrest, Florida 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
We have audited the financial statements of the Village of Pinecrest, Florida (the "Village"), as of and 
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated February 24, 
2021.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility  
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor 
General. 
 
Other Reporting Requirements  
We have issued our Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards; Schedule of Findings and Responses; and Independent 
Accountant’s Report on an examination conducted in accordance with AICPA Professional Standards, 
AT-C Section 315, regarding compliance requirements in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of 
the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which are dated February 24, 2021, 
should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.  
 
Prior Audit Findings  
Section 10.554(1)(i)1., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we determine whether or not 
corrective actions have been taken to address findings and recommendations made in the preceding 
financial audit report. There were no findings or recommendations in the preceding annual financial 
audit report requiring correction.  
 
Official Title and Legal Authority  
Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal 
authority for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in 
this management letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The Village of 
Pinecrest, Florida was established by the Board of Miami-Dade County Commissioners with the 
adoption of Ordinance 97-7.  The Village has no component units. 
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Financial Condition and Management  
Section 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate 
procedures and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the Village has met 
one or more of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the 
specific condition(s) met. In connection with our audit, we determined that the Village did not meet 
any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 
 
Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial 
condition assessment procedures for the Village. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the 
Village’s financial condition, and our financial condition assessment was based in part on 
representations made by management and review of financial information provided by the same.  
 
Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any 
recommendations to improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any 
such recommendations. 
  
Additional Matters 
Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with 
provisions of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have 
occurred, that have an effect on the financial statements that is less than material but which warrants 
the attention of those charged with governance. In connection with our audit, we did not note any such 
findings. 

 
Purpose of this Letter  
Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing 
Committee, members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida 
Auditor General, Federal and other granting agencies, the Mayor and Members of the Village Council, 
and applicable management, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties.  
 

 
 
Bradenton, Florida 
February 24, 2021 
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT 
 

 
Honorable Mayor, Members of the Village 
    Council and Village Manager, 
Village of Pinecrest, Florida 
 
We have examined the Village of Pinecrest, Florida’s (the “Village”) compliance with Section 
218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public funds during the year ended September 
30, 2020.  Management of the Village is responsible for the Village’s compliance with those 
requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Village’s compliance based on our 
examination.  
 
Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Village complied, in all material 
respects, with the specified requirements referenced above.  An examination involves performing 
procedures to obtain evidence about whether the Village complied with the specified requirements.  
The nature, timing and extent of the procedures selected depend on our judgement, including an 
assessment of the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error.  We believe that the 
evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.   
 
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Village’s compliance with specified 
requirements.  
 
In our opinion, the Village complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements 
during the year ended September 30, 2020. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Village and the Auditor General, State 
of Florida, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties.  

 
 
 
Bradenton, Florida 
February 24, 2021 
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Village Council
Joseph M. Corradino, Mayor  

James E. McDonald, Vice Mayor 
Katie Abbott 

Anna Hochkammer 
Doug Kraft

 
Yocelyn Galiano, ICMA-CM, Village Manager
Guido H. Inguanzo, Jr., CMC, Village Clerk

Mitchell Bierman, Village Attorney
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Pinecrest, Florida 33156
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